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Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the
accountable officer of the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the
NHS Trust Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should
be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer
Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

» there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds
and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

« value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

» the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes
intended by Pariiament and conform to the authorities which govem them;

» effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

» annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the
Secretary of State to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the
end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, other items of
comprehensive income and cash flows for the year.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust's
auditors are unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to
make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
entity’s auditors are aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Chief Executive




Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
accounts

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the trust and of the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive
income and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are
required to:

» apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary
of State with the approval of the Treasury;

» make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

 state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

* prepare the financial statements on a going concem basis and disclose any
material uncertainties over going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and
to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in
the above mentioned directlion of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for patients,
regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust's performance, business
model and strategy

By order of the Board
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Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust
Organisation Code: RY9

Annual Governance Statement for 2019-20

Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the NHS trust's policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which | am personally responsible,
in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that
the NHS trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied
efficiently and effectively. | also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust
Accountable Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable levei rather than to
eliminate all risk of faiiure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of intemnal
control is based an an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the
achievement of the policies and strategic objectives of Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of intemal control has been in place in Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and accounts.

Risk Management

In 2018 as a trust on our Journey to Outstanding, we decided to take a fresh look at risk
management to ensure that risk was further embedded into all decision making. To enable
us to defiver the ambition set out in the trust strategy and the NHS Plan we decided it was
timely to produce a risk management strategy to support our commitment to provide high
quality services. We recognised that successful risk management must be forward thinking;
the responsibility of all; comprehensive and coordinated; and that proactive and continuous
identification and management of risk is essential to the delivery of high value healthcare.



The strategy sets out clear goals, achievements and timescales for implementation. This
enables staff to work towards the same aims empowering innovation whilst ensuring patient
quality and care are at the centre of delivery. Within the strategy we created a vision for risk
management. Risk management wilt be everybody's business — integral to professional and
operational practice at every level and across organisational/professional boundaries. We will
continually strive to test the boundaries of practice, whilst ensuring that we operate within legal
and regulatory frameworks to reduce the exposure to risk to ensure that patients receive
outstanding care.

Risk governance

The Trust Board is accountable to NHS England/improvement (NHSE/!) for the trust's
performance. The main governance committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director and
report directly to the Board. Each committee is informed and supported by a variety of groups
and iocal meetings.

Risk and control framework
The trust has a robust approach to risk management with:

the Board holding an annual risk seminar to review risk management systems and
processes and fo agree the organisational risk appetite statement

the Audit and Risk Committee assuming delegated authority from the Board for oversight
and assurance on the management of strategic risks to the delivery of the trust's objectives.
The Audit and Risk Committee is supported in its oversight of strategic risks by the Finance
and Performance, Executive, Quality Govermance and Workforce and Education Committees
which lead on specific strategic risks

the Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk management
systems and delegates responsibility for the management of specitic areas of risk to named
Directors

all staff are provided with risk management training as part of their induction 1o the trust

face-to-face training for those staff regularly involved in risk management being provided as
appropriate

an open culture to empower staff to report and resolve incidents and risks through the Datix
recording system and to share learning with teams.

Managing workforce risks

HRCH has a five-year workforce strategy in place (2020-2024), which was co-developed with
clinical and corporate staff and agreed by the Board

the strategy and its associated action plans and workforce risks are monitored and assured
through the Board's Workforce and Education Committee (WEC), which is a sub-cormmittee
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of the Board. The WEC receives the workforce performance report that uses local and
national metrics and triangulates with benchmark data and quality and financial data

the workforce planning methodolagy entails firstly understanding the trust strategy and how
to best serve our vision that people will live healthier lives through high-quality, effective
and co-ordinated care. Then follows a review of where the trust is and what gaps in skills
and training are required to deliver that vision (such as digital and mobile technology and
multi-agency transformation and engagement skills), followed by planning of the workforce
required to meet the future strategy and activity assumptions in the most efficient way. The
planning phase includes consideration of the needs of the local population in terms of
workforce diversity, workforce supply (greater use of apprenticeships, 'retire and returmn’
options and the development of new roles) and service transformation in line with the NHS
Long Term Plan (greater use of on-line consuitations etc).

Managing quality risk

The clinical govemance agenda is led by the Director of Nursing and Non-Medical
Professionals and the Medical Director. Monitoring arrangements are delivered through a
structure of committees, supporting clear responsibilities and accountabilities from Board to
front line delivery. The Quality Govemance Committee {QGC) is a committee of the Board,
which affords scrutiny and monitoring of the quality agenda.

the Quality and Safety Commitiee (QSC) reports to the QGC. The Director of Nursing and
Non-Medical Professionals chairs this committee; membership of the QSC's commitiees
and working groups ensures senior leadership as well as frontline engagement with the
governance agenda

the trust’s clinical govemance structure ensures there are robust systems in place for key
governance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline services to the Board
and gives assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus on service improvement and
ensures high standards of delivery are maintained

the Board and the relevant commitiees use a performance scorecard which has been
developed to include a suite of quality indicators at trust and service level aligned to each
of the Care Quality Commission's five domains of quality. Services are expected to provide
exception reports for any indicators which are not performing as agreed and managers are
held to account against aclion plans to ensure trajeclories are maintained. This approach
enables centralised reporting of performance and quality data and improved triangulation of
information

the trust's quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in the Joumey to Qutstanding
(d20) programme. The J20 programme is a structured guality improvement plan with
quality improvement plans in all services fo monitor and demonstrate compliance with the
CQC's fundamental standards and against each of the CQC's domains and Key Lines of
Enquiry (KLOE).



Risk management process

The trust defines risk management as a process to identify factors which may possibly prevent
us from providing excellent, safe, efficient and effective place of work to deliver patient care and
for staff to work. Risk management includes the process of identifying hazards, risk
assessment, formulating a response, risk reporting and risk review. Risk management is as
much about exploiting new business opportunities and innovation as mitigating risk.

* Using Trust objectives, incidents, complaints, claims, patient feedback, safety inspactions etc
= |dentify the risk; what is or could cause harm and stop you achieving your objectives

a,
e
<

= How significant is the risk?
* Who and what are at risk, estimate of consequence, assess the risk scoring, document your assessment

K€

»How is risk managed?
11 * Describe controls, document actions, score risk, add to risk register, escalate, monitor and assure controls

 Key autputs of risk register are reported to relevant committee/groups depending on score

€

v Ali risk owners continually monitor and review risks

[{Review

%

Trust Risk Registers (TRR) (incl. Board Assurance Framework (BAF))

Comprises the local risk registers, the trust risk register as well as the board assurance
framework (BAF), which seek to present an overview of the main risks facing the organisation.
The local risk registers are reviewed, updated and manitored reguiarly by the relevant
directorate and, if necessary, a risk can be escalated onto the trust risk register, which is
monitored each quarier by the Quality and Safety and Quality Govemance Committees.

The BAF provides the trust with a simple but comprehensive method for effective and focused
management of the principal strategic risks to the delivery of the trust's business. It identifies the
controls and assurances in place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls
and assurances, and actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The system of
intemal control is designed to manage risks to a reasonable level and not to eliminate all risk.

The BAF is monitored by each Executive Director who assesses the status of their risk entry by
having oversight of the trust Risk Register. The BAF is monitored each month by the Executive
Committee and quarterly by the Audit and Risk Committee on behaif of the Trust Board.

An annual advisory review on the BAF and Risk Management was carried out by RSM Risk
Assurance Services LLP (who also provide our internal audit advice) and concluded the trust
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controls are robust and effectively designed. RSM confirmed the BAF is discussed at relevant
committee meetings to ensure that risks included are up to date with regards to controls and
assurances; and any progress against aclions is also included.

incident reporting

The trust follows the National Patient Safety Agency viewpoint “Trusts that report incidents
regularly suggest a stronger organisational culture of safety. They take alf incidents seriously
and link reporting with learning.” All services and staff are trained to use the Datix system which
facilitates linking of information across incident reporting, complaints and risk management.

A monthly report of incidents and serious incidents is reported to the Quality and Safety
Committee where it is discussed and analysed for themes and trends and assurance is sought
ihat risk is being managed.

The trust is a learning organisation and uses all opportunities to leam from when things go
wrong and to share that leaming. It has embraced a ‘being open’ approach and ‘duty of
candour’. Organisational and service level learning is identified through incidents, audit and
patient feedback and it reports lessons learned and monitors that any required changes in
praclice are implemented.

The trust promotes a culture of ‘shared learning’ that is embedded throughout the services and
has a number of processes to enable this which includes a monthly ‘Learn and Share’
newsletter and reflective leaming panels to ensure that staff are involved in the discussion and
agreement of actions. This promotes clinical ownership, mitigates the risk of a Serious Incident
reoccurring and promotes shared learning.

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The Board of Directors leads on integrated governance and delegates key duties and
functions to its sub-committees. In addition, the Board reserves certain decision-making
powers inciuding decisions on strategy and budgets. The diagram below gives an overview of
the trust's integrated governance structure.

Corporate governance framework

There are five key sub-committees with responsibility for receiving information on risk
management within the structure that provide assurance to the Board of Directars. The
Executive Committee repoiis directly to the Board although not a Board sub-committee.

There are a range of mechanisms available to these committees to gain assurance that systems
are robust and effective. These include ulilising internal and external audit, peer review,
management reporting and clinical audit.
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Committee structures

Each Committee Chair works within a framework which ensures a consistent approach across
all committees, including terms of reference, upward reporting and review of effectiveness.

The Board of Directors

Membership of the Board of Directors is currently made up of the trust chairman,
five independent, Non-Executive Directors, and eight Executive Directors of which
six are voting members of the Board, two with a share of one vote. The key roles
and responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

- lo set and oversee the strategic direction of the trust

- review and appraisal of financial and operational performance

to review areas of assurance and concerns as detailed in the chair's assurance reports
from its Board committees

to discharge its duties of regulation and control and meet statutory obligations

to ensure the trust continues to deliver high quality patient care, with quality and safety as
its primary focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reports and also a
chair's report from the key Board commitiee which deals with patient quality and safety —
the Quality Governance Committee

lo receive reports from the Audit and Risk Committee, which include the BAF and progress
against the delivery of strategic objectives, the annual intemal auditor's report and external
auditor's report and to take decisions, as appropriate

« to agree the trus!’s annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement
- to approve the annual report and annual accounts

to certify the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions is reviewed annually and the
self-declaration is uploaded onto the website.

On the 'self-certification’ tab hitps://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-and-
leadership/board-meetings




The Board of Directors meets in public bi-monthly and a breakdown of attendance for the
Board's 2019/20 part | meetings is shown below:

Job Title and Name Attendance
Chairman, Stephen Swords {to 31 Dec 2019) 40f4
Board Advisor (non-voting), Non-Executive Director (from 1/10/19), 6ofb
Ginny Colwell

Non-Executive Director, Phil Hall 50f6
Non-Executive Director, Joanne Hay 30f6
Non-Executive Director, Ajay Mehla (until October 2019) 20of3
Non-Executive Director, Judith Rutherford 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Bindesh Shah 50f6
Chief Executive, Patricia Wright 6ofb
Director of Clinical Services, Stephen Hall (shared vote) 50f6
Director of Clinical Services, Anne Stratton (shared vote) 6 of 6
Director of Finance and Corporate Services, David Hawkins 6of6
Director and Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Donna Lamb 50f 6
Director of Strategy and Transformation, Monique Carayol (non- 50f6
voting)

Director of Workforce, Alison Heeralall (non-voting) S5of6
Medical Director, John Omany 6ofb6

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is a formal committee of the Board and is accountable to the
Board for reviewing the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated
governance, risk management and internal control, across the trust’s activities both clinical and
non-clinical, that supports the achievement of the trust's objectives. The committee meets at
least five meetings per year.

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Govemance Committee (QGC) is a formal committee of the Board which focuses
on ensuring robust structures and processes are in place for governing the quality and clinicai
services and ensuring services are safe. The committee’'s role is to provide assurance on
clinical quality, including clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience.

It supports the Board with an integrated approach to risk, control and governance, monitoring
performance against quarterly quality indicators, the quality accounts and all aspects of the
three domains of quality namely - patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience.
The committee meets at least six times per year.



Finance and Performance Committee

The Finance and Performance Committee reviews financial and non-financial perfformance
across the trust, reporting to the Board. It also has lead oversight for risks to the delivery of
trust's sustainability strategic priority, along with delivery of the trust's strategies for estates
and information management and technology. The commitiee meets at least four times per
year.

Workforce and Education Committee

The Workforce and Education Committee is responsible for providing assurance that there are
processes and plans in place to agree and achieve the workforce objectives. The committee
oversees the trust's staff engagement and recruitment and retention strategic priorities that
enables the trust to compete successfully for recruits in areas where there is a shortage of
supply. It reviews performance against the delivery of key workforce plans which also cover
staff engagement actions taken following the outcome of the annual NHS staff survey. The
committee holds four meetings each year.

Executive Committee

The Execulive Committee has delegated responsibility to oversee the effective operational
management of the trust. The committee meets monthly to review:
the development and implementation of business plans, policies, procedures and budgets
operating and financial performance

the priaritisation and allocation of investment and resources within limits set down by
standing financial instructions

the effective mitigation of risks to the delivery of the trust’s strategic priorities.

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the pay and
contractual arrangements for Executive Directors and for monitoring and evaluating their
performance and ensuring appropriate succession plans are in place for Board members. It is
also responsible for ensuring that Directors meet the Fit and Proper Person Test as required
by the Health and Social Care Act 2008, (Regulated Aclivities), Regulations 2014.

Charitable Funds Committee

The Charitable Funds Committee has been established by the Board to make and monitor
arrangements for the control and management of the trust's charitable fund. Key duties of the
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Committee are to apply the charitable funds in accordance with the charity's governing
documents. The committee ensures that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to
support the objects of the charity and ensures that donated funds and assets are properly
spent, managed, invested and accounted for in line with guidance from the Charity
Commission and in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership Committee (RCHiP)

RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the Richmond GP Alliance (RGPA) to oversee progress
with delivery of the Outcome-Based Commissioning contract. RCHiP is a committee of both
the trust's and RGPA’s Boards.

Annual committee effectiveness reviews

In line with good governance practice and, as an integral part of being a well-led organisation,
each Board committee annually reviews its performance against its specific terms of reference
and objectives. Each committee also comments on its oversight of performance against the
delivery of the key work plans for the year. This information is then presented to the Trust
Board with any revisions to the terms of reference and the forthcoming year's work plan. The
Trust Board also considers the whole of its committee structure annually to ensure that it is
delivering its requirements.

Equality analysis

Equality analyses (formerly known as equality impact assessments) are integrated into core
business as a requirement for all trust decisions contained in its strategies, policies,
procedures and protocols. The trust has systems in place to ensure that it collects, analyses
and acts on information relating to the legislation on equality and diversity of its workforce and
the population it serves. Control measures are in place to ensure that all the erganisation’s
obligations under quality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. Equality and
diversity is overseen by the trust Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Committee chaired by the
Director of Workforce with a NED and patient executive lead. Assurance is reported via the
trust executive committee.

Care Quality Commission registration

The trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.
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NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer abligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer's
contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and
that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the
timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Carbon reduction

The trust has undertaken risk assessments, and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, based on UK
Climate Projections 2018 (UKCP18) to ensure thal obligations under the Climate Change Act
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The trust has in place a range of processes which help to ensure that resources are used
economically, efficiently and effectively. These include:

monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the Board of Directors and
the Finance and Performance Committee of the Board

monthly Executive Performance review meetings where directorates are held to account for
financial and non-financial performance

the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national reference
costs

continuous benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators (KPIs) against
community trusts and other providers

standing financial instructions, standing orders and treasury management policy

a budget holder's manual which sets out managers' responsibilities in relation to managing
budgets

policies covering the declaration of conflicts of interest, anti-fraud and anti-bribery
measures, and also standards of business conduct

reports by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP as par of the annual internal audit work pian
on control mechanisms which may need reviewing

the Head of Internal Audit's draft and final opinions being presented to the Audit and Risk
Committee

external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP who also provide an independent view of the
trust's effective and efficient use of resources, particularly against value for money
considerations

12



+ good performance under NHS Improvement's Single Oversight Framework for NHS
providers.

Information governance

Information governance supports our statutory duty to safequard patients' information and
keep it confidential but available, It assures us and patients that persona! information is dealt
with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively.

NHS Digital's annual Data Security and Protection toolkit audit helps us assess ourselves
against current data protection legislation and related regulations, giving either a pass or fail

mark.

The trust submitted a fully compliant assessment in March 2020. This was achieved through a
variety of measures and actions, including:

Continued review of personal data to ensure that the trust operates in line with the
General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) and follows a ‘data protection by design’
approach

Review of access to information processes, to ensure that all requests are answered
within the legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large fines from
the ICO

Ongoing review and revision of the trust privacy notice

Completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects,
services, systems and applications which in involve the use of personal data

Ongoing review of data flow in and out of the organisation, to ensure accountability
Self-referring data incidents to the ICO for full transparency ensuring no further action
was taken

An audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital
toolkit by our external auditors

Board level cyber security training with GCHQ

A business continuity tabletop exercise

Continuing review of policies and staff guidance

Helping colleagues to complete information govemance and security e-leaming training
Attending team meetings so that data protection and security is a key element of all
work and staff take responsibility for data in their team.

By submitling a fully compliant DSPT we are working towards Cyber Essentials Plus
accreditation.



The trust reports information governance “serious incidents” onto the national serious incident
reporting system, STEIS, and to the Inforation Commissioners’ Office (ICO).

In 2018-20, one IG incident was reported as an Sl and so was reported to the ICO, no further
action was taken. A further incident was a self-referral to the 1CO and no further action was
taken.

Annual Quality Account

In line with the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) the trust prepares an annual Quality Account which is signed
off by the Trust Board prior to it being shared with commissioners, Healthwatch and the local
authority scrutiny committees.

The Quality Account is a summary of performance in the last year in relation to quality
priorities and national requirements. The account is not required to be audited however an
internal process of scrutinising the data to ensure it is consistent with the trust performance
scorecard is used. The template used for the quality account meets statutory requirements and
the trust reviews new guidance annually - for instance the inclusion of mortality data in the
2017-18 quality account.

Data quality

General data quality is audited annually, and the trust has undertaken actions to improve the
quality of its electronic patient record through better use of templates and the automation of
data where appropriate. The trust assures the quality and accuracy of elective waiting time
data through both its Business Intelligence reporting and the Patient Tracking List (PTL) that is
distributed to, and discussed by, operational leads. Waiting times are individually monitored by
both service lines and urgency. Alongside external data quality audits, data capture is
continually reviewed by the applications team and any lraining requirements are subsequently
assessed with resource then appropriately allocated.

Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of intemal control is informed by
the work of the internal auditors, clinical audit and the Executive managers and clinical leads
within the NHS trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. | have drawn on the information provided in this annual report and
other performance information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made
by the external auditors in their management letter and other reporis. | have been advised on
14



the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
by the Board, the Audit and Risk Committee and Quality Governance Committee and plans to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system are in place.

The Board ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear
accountability arrangements.

An annual "Head of Internal Audit Opinion” based on the work and audit assessments
undertaken during the year for 2019-20 was issued and provided assurance thal the
organisation has an adequate and effective framework for risk management, governance and
internal control.

Factors which helped to inform the Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion included undertaking
specifically requested management reviews with the aim of strengthening current practices.
The Data Quality — Clinical Supervision and Mobile Working Arrangements audits have both
shown only partial assurance and internal audit have provided recommendations to address
and strengthen processes in line with current requirements. The Head of Internal Audit Opinion
also identified further enhancements to Data Quality - Clinical Supervision and Mobile working
Arrangements to ensure that they remain adequate and effective.

| am confident that the internal audit reports undertaken were a true reflection of HRCH's
position and that the updated action plans scrutinised at the Quality Governance Committee
and Audit and Risk Committee reflect clear and concise progress in all areas.

Conclusion

| confirm that no significant intemal control issues have been identified.

/2[%% &)D?AL

Signed

Chief Executive Date: 24 June 2020



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
HOUNSLOW AND RICHMOND COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST

REPORT ON THE AUBIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial siatements of Hounslow and Richmond Community Heallhcare
NHS Trust {“the Trust"} for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Stalement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Taxpayers
Equily and Statement of Cash Flows, and the related noles, including the accounting policies
innote 1.

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust's affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of its
income and expendilure for the year then ended, and

= have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounling policies direcled by the
Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as being relevant to NHS Trusts in
England and included in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manua! 2019/20.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (*ISAs
{UK}"} and applicable faw. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Trust in accordance with, UK ethical
requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe (hat the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for cur opinion.

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statemenls on the going concern basis as they have
not been informed by the relevant national bady of the intention {o dissclve the Trust without
the transfer of its services to another public sector enlity, They have also concluded that there
are no material uncertainlies that could have cast significant doubt over ils ability to continue
as a gaing concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial stalements (“the
going caoncern period”).

We are required {o report to you if we have concluded thal the use of the going concarn basis
of accounting is inapprapriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt over the use of that basis for a period of at ieasl a year from the date of
approval of the financial statemenls. In our eveluation of the Director's conclusions we
considered the inherent risks to the Trust's operations and analysed how these risks might
affect the Trust's financial rescurces, or ability to continue its operations over the going concern
period. We have nothing o report in these respects,

However, as wa cannot predict all fulure events or condilions and as subsequent events may
result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they
were made, the absence of reference to a malerial unceriainty in this auditor's report 1s not a
guarantee that the Trus!t will continue in operation

Other information in the Annual Report

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information presented i the Annual Report
tagether with the financial statements. Cur opinion on the financial stalements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audil opinion or. excepl as
explicilly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether. based an
our financial statements audit work, the information therein s malenally misslated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based salely on that work
we have not identified material misstalements in the other information  In aur opinion the ather
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information included in the Annual Repart for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statemenls.

Annual Governance Statemen!

We are required o report to you if the Annual Governance Slatement has not been prapared
in accordance with the requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manuat 2019/20. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Remuneration and Staff Report

In our opinion the pars of the Remuneration and Stafi Report subject lo audit have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manuai 2019/20.

Directors’ and Accountable Officer's responsibilities

As explained more fully in the statement set aut on page 2, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are also responsible for:
such intarnal control as they determine is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Trust's ability to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relaled to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissalve the Trust wilhout the transfer
of its services to another public sector entity. As explained more fully in the statement of the
Chief Executive's responsibilities, as the Accountable Officer of the Trust, on page 1 the
Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring that annual stalulory accounts are prepared in
a farmat directed by the Secretary of Stale.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our
opinion in an auditor's repor. Reasanable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wilh 1ISAs {UK) will always detect a material
misstalement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
malerial i, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A juller description of our responsibiities 1s provided on the FRC's websile at

REPQORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS

Report on the Trust's arrangements for securing economy, efficiericy and effectiveness
in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if the Trust has not made
proper arrangement for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We have nothing ta report in this respect

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

As explained in the slatement set out on page 1. the Chief Executive, as the Accountable
Officer, is responsible for ensuring Ihat value for money is achieved from the resources
available to the Trust We are required under seclion 21(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13
paragraph 10(a), of the Lacal Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust
has made proper arrangements for securing economy. efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources,

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangerents for secunng economy. efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectvely
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We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard
lo the specified criterion issued by the Complroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in December
2019 and updated in April 2020 as to whether the Trust had proper arrangemenis to ensure it
look properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for laxpayers and local people. We planned our wark in accordance with the Code
of Audit Practice and related guidance. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such
work as we considered necessary.

Statutory reporting matters

We are required by Scheduie 2 to the Code of Audil Practice issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General ('the Code of Audit Praclice') to repor lo you if:

« we refer a matier to the Secretary of Stale under section 30 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to beligve that the Trust, or an officer of
the Trust, is about 10 make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the
body incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to lake, or has begun to take a course of
action which, if followed o its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely o cause a3 loss or
deficiency; or

s weissue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act2014; or

+ we make a wrillen recommendation to the Trust under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR
RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Board of Directors of Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust. as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so thal we might slate to lhe
Board of the Trust, as a body, those matlers we are required o state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullesl extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility lo anyone other than the Board of the Trust, as a body, for aur audit work,
for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We centify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Hounstow and Richmond
Community Healthcare NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice

'z

Richard Hewes

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants

London

24 June 2020



Statement of Comprehensive Income

Operaling income from patient care activities
Other operaling income
Operating expenses
Operating surplus/{deficit) from continuing operations

Finance income

POC dividends payable
Net finance costs

Other gains / {losses)

Surplus / (deficlt) for the year from continuing operations

Surplus / (deficit) on disconlinued operaticns and the gain / {loss) on

disposal of disconlinued operations
Surplus / {deficit) for the year

Othar comprehensive income

Wil not ba reclassified to income and expenditure:
Revaluations
Total comprehensive Income / (expense) for the period

Adjusted financial performance (control total basis):
Surplus / (deficit) for the period
Remaove |&E impacl of capital grants and donalions
Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficlt)

19

2019/20 2018/19

Note £000 £000
3 74,341 67,960
4 3,325 5,893
7.9 (75.470) (69,006)
2,195 4,847

12 159 102
(691) (691)

(532) {589)

14 - -
1,664 4,258

16 - -
1,664 4,258

19 1,320 (560)
2,984 1,698

1,664 4,258

57 (518}

1,721 3,742




Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Praperty, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventaries
Reaceivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Currant llabllities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Other liabililies
Total current llabilities
Total assets less current llabilities
Non-current liabllities
Provisions
Other liabilifies
Total non-current liabllities
Total assets amployed

Financed by
Public dividend capiltal
Revaiuation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers' aquity

The notes on pages 24 to 80 form part of lhese accounls.

Name Palricia Wright
Paosition Chief Exaculive
Date 24 June 2020

20

Note

16
17

24
25
28

29
34
30

30

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000

26,264 27,008
28,264 27,006
7.372 6,501
24,460 21,872
31,832 28,373
(13,008} (11,275)
e (32)
(53) (25)
{13,061) {11,332)
47,035 44,047
{704) {675)
S (25)
{704) {700}
46,331 43,347
11,973 10,653
34,358 32,604
46,331 43,347
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Information on reserves

Public dividand capltal

Pubic dividend capiial (PDC) is a type of public sector equitly finance based on the excess of assels over liabliities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS arganisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusts by the
Depariment of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecling the cost of capital ulitised by the trust, is payable to the
Depariment of Health as the public dividend capital dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and lo the
extan! that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operaling expenses, In which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward mavements in assel valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recagnised unless the downward movement reprasents a clear consumption of economic
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Financial assets reserve

This reserve comprises changes in the fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. When these instrumenls are derecognised, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised as other
comprehensive income or expenditure are recycled Lo income or expenditure, unless the assats are equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as a result of imevocable election at recognition.

Merger reserve
This reserve reflects balances formed on merger of NHS baodies.

Income angd expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficils of the trust.



Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus / (deficit}

Non-cash Income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisalion
Income recognised in respect of capilal donations
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assels
{Increase) / decrease in inventories
Ingrease / (decrease) In payables and other liabilities
Ingrease / (decrease) in provisions

Net cash flows from / (used In) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of intangible assels
Purchase of PPE and investmenl property
Sales of PPE and invesimenl property
Receipt of cash donalions to purchase assels
Net cash flows from / (used in} investing actlvitles
Cash flows from financing activities
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded
Net cash flows from / {used in} financing activitias
Increase [ {dacrease) In cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward
Prior period adjustments
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - restated
Cash and cash equivalents transferred under absorption accounting
Unrealised gains / {losses) on forelgn exchange
Cash and cash equivalents at 34 March

Note

7.1

28.1

2019720 2018119
£000 £000
2,196 4,847
1,899 2,080
- (534)
(B871) (46)
1,589 2,644
(3) 19
4,810 9,010
159 102
(1,624) (3,025)
- 534
(1,465) (2,389)
757 (691)
(757) (691)
2,588 5,930
21,872 15,342
21,872 15,942
24,450 21,872




Notes to the Accounts
Note 1 Accounting policies and other information

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Depariment of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial stalements of the Trust shall meet the
accounting requiremenis of the Depariment of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
GAM 2019720 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care, The accounting policies contained in the GAM
{ollow Inlemational Financial Reporting Slandards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriale to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy that is judged lo be most appropriate to the paricular circurnsiances
of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policles adopted are
described below. These have been applied consistently in dealing with ilems considered material in relation to the
accounts,

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of
propenty, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and cerain financial assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.2 Going concern
These accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis.

HRCH continues lo have tumnover growth from one financial year to the next. A five-year Outcome Based Contract with
Richmond CCG signed in 2016 is still in place, and we have a financial agreement in place with Hounslow CCG for
2020-21 while all commissioning arrangements are suspended due to the COVID-13 pandemic. We are working with
Houns!ow CCG towards an alliance Integraled Care contract with a number of other NHS providers and parners, which
supports financial sustainability over the medium-term horizon. The naticnal directive and the local Sustainability and
Transformation Plans {STPs}) are for Out of Hospital (OOH) care, and the focus on community services within the NHS
Lang Term plan supports a drive for activity to move from the acula sector to lhe community and primary care sector. A
joint venture agreement with one local GP alliance and integrated working amangements with another also points lo a
positive future for the Trust. The going concem assessment is therefore positive. However, with more focus on joint
working across sysiems rather than individual organisational plans, including the commencement of a system control
lotai regime, brings a new leve! of uncerainty and challenge lo ensure financial stability across the system rather than
just at organisational level. The future delivery of services and financial allocations in the aftermalh of the coronavirus
pandemic Is also an unknown element at this time.

Note 1.3 Interests In other entities

There are no interests on other entilies

249



Note 1.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from conlracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the
delinition of a contracl to Include legislation and regufalions which enables an entity to receive cash or another financial
asset thal is nol classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).

Revenue in respect of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligatians are salisfied by
transferring promised goods/services to the customer and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allacated
to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trusi accrues income relating to performance abligalions
salisfied in that year. Where the Trus!’s entitlement to consideration for those goods or services is unconditional a
contract receivable will be recognised. Where entillement to consideration is conditional on a further factor other than
the passage of fime, a contract asset will be recognised. Where consideration received or receivable relates to a
performance obligation that is lo be satisfied In a future period, the income is deferred and recognised as a cantract
liability.

The Trust recognises conlractual revenue over time on the basis that our Commissioners simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits as we provide our services to the community. For contracls which are performance based, the
Trust recagnises the revenue based on performance obligations satisifed at a poind in time in year. Ravenue accruals
are made on the basis of our lasl period’s performance, these are submitled for Commissioners's review al year end.

Non-NHS revenue relating to performance obligation to be satisified in future period(s) are deferred and recognised as
current and non-current contractual Habikity,

Revenue from NHS contracts

The main source of income for the Trust Is contracis with commissianers for heaith care services. A performance
obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care is generally salisfied over time as healthcare is received and
cansumed simullaneously by the customer as the Trust parforms it. The cuslomer in such a conlract is the
commissioner, but the customer benefils as services are provided to their patient. Even where a conlract could be
broken down inlo separate performance obligations, healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the Slandard
entailing a delivery of a series of goods or services that are substanlially the same and have a similar paltern of
transfer. Al the year end, the Trusl accrues income relating lo activity delivered in that year, where a patient care spell
Is incomplete. This accrual is disclosed as a conlract receivable as enlitlement to payment for work completed is
usually only dependent on the passage of time.

The Trust receives income from commissioners under Commissfoning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes.
The Trust agrees schemes with ils commissioner but ihey affect how care Is provided to patients. That is, the CQUIN
payments are not considered distinct performance obligations in their own right; instead they form part of the
transaction price for performance obligations under the contract. Although CQUIN income is not material, only the value
of income relating to satisfactory performance agianst these ohligations has been recognised
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Revenue from research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue is recagnised as and when performance obligalions are
satisfied. For some conlracts, it is assessed thal the revenue project conslilules ene performance obfigation over the
course of the multi-year contracl. In these cases it is assessed that the Trust's interim pedformance does not create an
assel with alternative use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enfarceable right to payment for the performance
compleled to date. It is therefore considered that the performance obligalion is salisfied over time, and the Trust
recognises revenue each year over the course of the conlracl. Some research income altemalively falls within the
provisions of IAS 20 for govemment grants.

NHS Injury cost recovery scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cosl recovary scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals ta whem personal injury compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance by an insures, The Trust
recognises the income when performance obligalions are salisfied. In practical terms this means thal treatment has
been given, it receives nolificalion from the Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unil, has
compleled the NH52 form and confirmed there are na discrepancies with the irealment. The income is measured al the
agreed tanff for the treatments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubltful debts in line with IFRS 9 requiremenis of measuring expected credit losses over the lifetime of the
asset,

Provider sustainability fund {PSF) and Financial recovery fund (FRF)
The PSF and FRF enable providers to eam income linked to the achievement of financial contrals and performance
targels. income earned from {he funds is accounted for as variable consideration.

Note 1.5 Other forms of income

Grants and donatlons

Govemment grants are grants from government bodies other than income fram commissioners or trusts for the
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure il is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to malch that expenditure. Where the grant Is used lo fund capital expendilure, it is credited to the consolidated
slatemenl of comprehensive income once conditions atiached o the grant have been met. Donations are treated in the
same way as gavernment granls.

Apprenticeship service Income

The value of the benelil received when accessing funds from the Govemmenl's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income al the point of receipt of the training service. Where these funds are paid directly o an accrediled training
provider from the Trust's Digilal Apprenticeship Service {DAS) account held by the Depariment for Educalion, the
corresponding notional expense Is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit,

Note 1.6 Expenditure on employee benefits

Short-term employes benafits

Saltaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security cosls and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement eamed
but not laken by employees at the end of the period Is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permilied 1o camy-forward leave into the following period.
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Pension costs
NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes thal cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of Stale for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
that would enable employers lo idenlify their share of the underiying scheme assels and liabilities. Therefore, ihe
schema is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contribulions payable to the scheme far the accounting periad, The coniributions are charged 1o
operaling expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from eadly relirements are not funded by the scheme excepl where the retirement is
due to il-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs Is charged to the operating expenses al the lime
the trust commits itself to the retirement. reaardless of the method of pavment.

Note 1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expendilure on goods and services is recognised when, and o the exient that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services, Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses excapt where
it results in the craation of 2 non-current assel suck as property, plant and equipment.
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Note 1.8 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Propenrty, ptant and aquipment is capitalised where:

* il is held for use in delivering services or for administralive purposes

« it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

+ it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

* the cosl of the item can be measured reliably

+ the item has cos! of at least £5,000, or

» colleclively, a number of items have a cost of al least £5,000 and Individually have cast of more than £250, where the
assets are funclionally interdependent, had broadly simullaneous purchase dates, are anticipaled {o have similar
disposal dates and are under singte managerial contral.

Where a large assel, for example a building, includes a number of components with significanlly different asset lives,
eg, plant and equipment, then these components are trealed as separale assels and depreciatad over their own useful
lives.

Subsaquent expenditure

Subsequent expendilure relating to an ilem of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional fulure economic benefils or service potential deriving
{rom the cost incurred to replace a component of such item will flow to the anterprise and the cost of the item can be
delermined reliably. Where a component of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement is capilalised if it meets
the criteria for recognition above. The camying amount of the part replaced is de-recognised. Other expenditure that
does nol generale addiliopal future economic benefils or service polential, such as repairs and mainlenance, is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred,

Measurement
Valualion

All properly, plant and equipment assets are measured inilially at cost, representing the cosls directly allributable to
acquiring or construcling the assel and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operaling in the manner intended by managemenl.

Assels are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets which are held for their service polantial and are in use (ia
operational assels used to deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured al their current value
in exisling use. Assels that were most recently held for their service potantial but are surplus with no plan to bring them
back Into use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do
not meet the definilians of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revaluations of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity lo ensure that carrying values are
not malerially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period. Current values in existing
use are determined as follows:

+ Land and non-specialised buildings — markel value for existing use
+ Specialised buildings — deprecialed replacement cost on a modern equivalent asset basis.

For specialised assets, curren| value in existing use is interpreled as the prasent value of the asset's remaining service
potential, which is assumed to be at least equal to the cost of repiacing that service potenlial. Specialised assels are
therefore valued at their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a modem equivalent asse! (MEA) basis. An MEA
brasis assumes (hat the asset will be replaced with a8 modemn asset of equivalent capacity and meeting the location
requiremnerts of the services being provided. Assets held at depreciated replacement cost have been valued on an
allemative site basis where this would meet the location requirements,

Valuation guldance issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyers states that valualions are performed net of
VAT where the VAT is recoverable by the entity. This basis would be applied to the trust's Private Finance Initiative
(PF1) scheme where the construction is compleled by a special purpose vehicle and the coslts have recoverable VAT for
the trust.

Properties in the course of consiruction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment
loss. Coslt Includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with IAS 23, borrowings costs. Assels are
revalued and depreciation commences when the assels are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, fumiture and fttings, and planl and machinery that are held for aperational use are
valued at depreciated historic cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is not
considered lo be malerially different from current value in existing use.

Depreciation
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ltems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining usefu! lives in a manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or servica delivery benefils. Freehold land is considered to have an infinite life and is not

depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be deprecialed upon the
raclassification. Assels in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Stalement of Financial Position PFI
conlract assets are not depreciated unlil the asset Is brought into use or reverts to the trust, respectively.

Revaluation gains and losses

Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and ta the extent that, they reverse a
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure.

Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation reserve 1o the extent that there is an available balance for the assel
concermned, and thereafter are charged lo operaling expenses.

Gains and losses racognised in the revaluation reserve are reporied in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
ilem of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impainments

fn accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of service
potential in the asset are charged to operaling expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve
to the income and expenditure reserve of an amount equa! to the lower of (i) the impairmen! charged to operating
expenses; and (i) the balance in {he revaluation reserve aliributable to that assal before the Impairment.

An impairment that arises from & clear consumption of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed when, and to
the extent that, the circumstances (hal gave rise to the loss is reversed, Reversals are recognised in operaling
expendilure to the extent that the assel is restored to the carrying amount it would have had if the impairment had never
bean recognised. Any remaining reversal is recagnised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of the original
impairment, a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the incoma and expendilure reserve, an amount is
transferred back o the revaluation reserve when lhe impaimment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are trealed as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments' are trealed as ravaluation gains.

De-recognition

Assels Intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held lor sale’ ance alf of the following crileria are mel. The sale must
be highly probabie and the asset available for immediale sale in its present condition.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their “fair value
less costs to seli’. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale centract
conditions have been metl.

Property, plant and equipment which is lo be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’
and instead is retained as an aperational asset and the asset's useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when

scrapping or demalition aceurs.

Donated and grant funded assets

Donaled and grant funded properly, plant and equipment assels are capitalised at their fair value on receipt. The
donalion/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition thal the future
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donar, in which case, the
donalionigrant is deferred within liabilities and s camied forward to future financial years to the extent that the condilion

has not yet been met,

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other items of property,
plant and equipment.



Private Finance Initlative {PFl) and Local Improvement Finance Trust {LIFT) transactions

PF1{ and LIFT transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concesslon, as interpreted in HM Treasury's
FReM, are accounted for as 'on-Statement of Financial Position' by the trusl. In accordance with HM Treasury's FReM,
the underlying assels are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent liability.
Subsequenlly, the asseals are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or Intangible assets as appropriale,

The annual contract payments are apporlioned between the repayment of Lhe liability, a finance cost, the charges for
services and lifecycle replacement of components of the assel, The element of the annual unilary payment increase due
1o cumulalive indexation is trealed as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred.

The service charge is recognised In operating expenses and the finance cost is charged to finance cosls in the
Slatement of Comprehensive Income.

The Trust does not currenlly have any PFl arrangemenls
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives reflect the total Iife of an asset and nol the remaining life of an assel. The range of useful lives are shown in
the table belaw:

Min life Max lfe

Years Years

Land = 5
Buildings, excluding dwellings 5 47
Dwellings - -
Plant & machinery 2 15
Transport equipment 3 15
Informatlon technology 2 10
Furmniture & fittings 2 10

Finance-leased assels (Including land) are depreciated over ihe shorler of the useful life or the lease term, unless the
trust expects to acquire the asset al the end of the lease term In which casae the assels are depreciated in the same
manner as owned assets above,

Note 1.9 Intangible assets

Recognition

intangible assets are non-monelary assets without physical substance which are capable of being scld separately from
the rest of the trust's business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recagnised only where it is
probable thal future ecenamic benefits will flow to, or service polential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the
assel can be measured reliably.

Intemally generated intangible assels

Intemnally generaled goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lisis and similar ltems are nol capitalised as
intangible assels.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on developiment is capitalised where it meets the requirements
sel outin IAS 38,
Software

Software which |3 integral to the operation of hardware, eg an operating system, is capitalised as part of Ihe relevant
item of property, plant and equipment. Software which s not integral to the operation of hardware, g application
software, is capitalised as an intangible assel.

Measurement

Intangible assets are recognised initfally at cost, comprising all directly attribulable costs needed to creale, produce and
prepare the asset to the point thal it is capable of operating in the manner intended by management,



Subsequently inlangible assets are measured al curren! value in existing use. Where no active market exists, intangible
assels are valued at the lower of depraciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset is income
generaling. Revaluations gains and losses and impairments are treated in the same manner as for praperty, plant and
equipment. An intangible assel which is surpius with no plan to bring it back into use is valued al fair value where there
are no resirictions on sate at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definilions of invesiment properties or
assels held for sale.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or falr value fess costs to sell.

Amortisalion

Intangible assets are amorlised over their expected useful lives in a manner cansistent with the cansumption of
economic or service delivery benefits.

Useful lives of intanglble assets
Useful lives reflect the tolal life of an asset and not the remalning life of an assel. The range of useful lives are shown in
the table below:

Min life Max life
Years Years
Infarmation technology . 1

The Trust is not currently holding any intangible assets having fully depreciated
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Note 1.10 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. The cosl of Inventorias Is measured using the first in,
first out (FIFO) method.

Note 1.11 Investment properties

Investment properlies are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised as gains or losses in
incomelexpenditure.

Only those assets which are held solely lo generate a commercial return are cansidered to be investment properties.
Where an asset is held, in pan, for support service delivery objectives, then it is considered to be an item of property,
plant and equipment. Properties occupied by employees, whether or not they pay rent at markel rates, are not classified
as investment properties.

Note 1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposils with any financial institution repayable without penalty an nolice of not more than 24
hours, Cash equivalenls are Investmenls that mature in 3 months or less from the dale of acqulsition and that are readily
converible to known amounis of cash with insignificant risk of change in vatue.

In Lhe Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalenis are shown net of bank overdrafis that are repayable on
demand and thal form an integral part of the Trust's cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded
at current values.

Note 1.13 Carbon Reduction Commitmant schame (CRC)

The CRC scheme is a mandalory cap and trade scheme for non-transport CO2 emissions. The trust Is registerad with
the CRC scheme, and is therefore required ta surrender to the Government an allowance for every tonne of CO2 it emils
during the financial year, A llabllity and related expense |s recognised In respect of this obligation as CO2 emissions are
made.

The carrying amount of the Hability at the financial year end will therelore reflect the CO2 emissions that have been made
during thal financial year, less the allowarces (if any) surrendered voluntarily during the financtal year in respect of thal
financial year.

The liabifity will be measured al the amount expecled to be incurred In seliling the obligation. This will be the cost of the
number of allowances required to setile the cbligation.

Note 1.14 Financial assets and financial liabilities

Recaognition

Financial assets and financial liabifities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financlal
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal abligation to pay cash or anolher financiat instrument.

The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise lo arrangements that
in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are enlered into in
accordance with {he Trust's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recagnised when, and to the extent
which, performance accurs, e, when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is mada.

Classification and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabililies are initially measured at fair value plus or minus directly atiributable transaction

cosis except where the assel or liabliity Is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Falr value is taken
as Ihe transaction price, or otherwise delermined by reference 1o quoled markel prices or valuation techniques.

Financial assets or financlal liabilities In respect of asseis acquired or disposed of through finance leases are recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described below.

Financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through incomie and expenditure.
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Financial Habilities classified as fair value through income and expenditure.

Financlal assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financlal assels and financlal liabliilles at amortised cost are those hald with the objective of collecting conlractual cash
flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and Interest. This Includes cash equivalents, conlract and
other recelvables, trade and other payables, rights and obligalions under lease arrangements and loans receivable and

payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial kabilities are measured at amortised cos{ using the effective
interest melhod less any impairment {for financial assels). The effective interest rale is the rale that exactly discounts
eslimated future cash payments or receipls through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability 1o the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lo the amoartised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue ar expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rale lo the gross camying amount of a
financial asse! or amortised cost of a financial liabliity and recognised In the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a
financing income or expense, In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Soclal Care, the effective
interest rate Is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan.

Financlal assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset Is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where business model objectives are
mel by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financlal assets and where the cash flows are solely payments
af principat and interest, Mavements in the fair value of financial assets In this calegory are recognised as gains or losses
in other comprehensive Income except for impaiment losses. On derecognition, cumulative galns and losses previously
recognised in olher comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to Income and expendilure, excepl where the
Trust elecled to measure an equity instrument in this category on initlal recognition.

The Trust has irevocably elecled lo measure the following equity instrumenls at falr value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets and financial liahillties at fair value through income and expenditure

Financial assels measured at {air value through profit or ioss are those that are not otherwise measured al amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprebensive income. This category alse includes financial assets and liabilities
acquired princlpally for the purpose of salting in the short term (held for trading} and derivatives, Derivatives which are
embedded in other contracis, but which are separable from the host contract are measured wihin this category.
Movemnents in the falr value of financial assels and Habilities In this calegory are recognised as gains or losses in the
Statement of Comprehensive income,

The Trust has imevocably elecied to measure the following financial assels / financlal liabiiies at fair value through
income and expanditure:

Impairment of financial assets

For all financial assets measured at amortised costincluding lease receivablas, contract receivables and contracl assets
or assefs measured al falr value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an allowance for expected
credi lossas.

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impaiment for contract and other receivables, contract assets and lease
recelvables, measuring expecled losses as at an amount equal to Hfetime expected losses. For other financial assets,
the loss allowance is inltially measured al an amount equal to 12-month expecied credil losses (stage 1) and
subsequently at an amount equal to lifelime expected credit losses If the credil risk assessed for the financlal asset

significanily Increases (stage 2).



For financial assets Ihat have become credit impaired since initial recagnition (stage 3}, expected credit losses at the
reporting date are measured as the difference between the assetl's gross camying amount and the presenl value of
estimated future cash flows discounted &t the financial assel's original effeclive inlerest rate.

Expected losses are charged to operaling expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive Ingome and reduce the
net carrying value of the financial asset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Deracognition

Financlal assels are de-recognised when the contractual rights 1o receive cash flows from the assets have expired or the
Trust has lransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial iabilities are de-recognised when the obligatlon is discharged, cancelled or expires.



Nota 1.15 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially afl the risks and rewards of ownership are ransferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operaling leases.

The trust as a lessee

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leasad asset are bosne by (he trusl, the assel is recorded as
property, plant and equipment and a correspanding liability is recorded. The value at which both are recognised Is the
lower of the fair value of the assel or ihe present value of the minimum lease payments, discounied using the Interest
rale implicit in the lease The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant periodic rate of inlerest on the
outstanding liability.

The assel and liability are recognised at Ine commencemant of the lease. Thereafter the asset Is accounted foras an
itern of praperty plant and equipment.

The annua! rental charge is split between the repayment of the liabliity and a finance cost $0 as 1o achleve a constant
rale of finance aver Lhe life of the lease. The annual finance cost Is charged to finance costs in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Opsrating leases

Operaling lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease Incenlives
ara recognised initially in other labilities on the statement of financial position and subsequently as a reduction of rentals
on a siraight-line basis over ihe lease term. Conlingent rentals are recognised as an expense In the period in which they
are incurred

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease Is for land and buildings, the land companent Is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately.

The trust as a lessor

Finence leases

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as recelvables at the amount of the Trust's net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on the
trust's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operaling leases

Rental income from operaling leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial diract costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operaling legse are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense an a straight-line basis over the lease lerm.

Note 1.16 Provislons

The Trust recognises a provislon where il has a present legal or constructive ebligation of uncertain liming or amount; for
which it Is probable that there will be a fulure outfiow of cash or other resources; and a rellable estimale can be made of

the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position Is the best estimate of the resources required
{o seltle the ohbligation, Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusled cash flaws

are discounted using HM Treasury's discounl rates effective for 31 March 2020

Neminal rate
Short-term Up to & years 0.51%
Medium-term After 5 years up to 10 years 0.55%
Long-tern Exceeding 10 years 1.98%

HM Traasury provides discount rales for general provisions on a nominal rale basis. Expected future cash flows are
therefore adjusted for the impaci of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rales are set

by HM Treasury, effective 31 March 2020:
inflation rate

Year 1 1.90%
Year 2 2.00%
into perpetuity 2.00%



Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the MM Treasury’s pension discounl rate of minus 0.5%
in real terms.

Clinlcal negligence costs

NHS Resolution operales a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution,
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resclution is administratively responsible for ail
clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remalns with the Trust, The tolal value of clinical negligence provisions carmied
by NHS Resolution on behall of the trust is disclased at note 34.2 bul Is nol recognised in the Trust's accounts,

Non-clinical risk pooling

The trust pariicipales in the Property Expenses Schame and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolulion and In return recelves assistance with the
costs of claims arising. The annual membership coniributions, and any excesses payable In respect of particular ¢laims
are charged {0 aperaling expenses when the Hability arises.

Note 1.17 Contingencies

Contingent assets (thal is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
evenis nat whally within the enlity's conirol) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed In nole 35 where an inflow of
economic beneafits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 35, unless the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits Is remole.

Conlingent liabilities are defined as:

+ possible obligations arising from past events whase existence will ba confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain fulure evenls not wholly within the entity's conirol; or

- present obligations arising from past events bul for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefils will arise
or for which the amounl of the obligation cannot be measured with sufiicient reliability.

Note 1,18 Public dividend capltal

Public dividend capital (PDC) Is a type of public seclor equity finance based on the excess of assels over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC Is not a financial
instrument within the meaning of IAS 32.

The Secretary of State ean issue new PDC lo, and require repayments of PDC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the
value received.

A charge, reflecling the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge Is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currenlly 3.5%) an the average relevant net assels of the trust during the
financial year, Relevant net assels are calculated as the value of all assels less the value of all liabililies, excepl for

(i) donaled and grant funded assets,

(i} average daily cash balances held with the Gavernment Banking Services (GBS} and National Loans Fund (NLF)
deposits, excluding cash balances held In GBS accounis that relate to a short-lerm warking cagital facllity, and

{iii) any POC dividend balance recelvable or payable.

In accardance with the requirements lald down by the Department of Health and Soctal Care {as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant nel assets as sel out in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend calcuiated is not revised should any adjusimenl to net assels oceur as a resull the audit
of the annua) accounts.

Note 1.19 Value added tax
Most of the aclivilies of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, cutpul 1ax does nol apply and input tax on
purchases is nol recoverable. Imecoverable VAT is chargad to the relevant expenditure calegory or included in the

capilalised purchase cost of fixed assels. Where output tax is charged or input VAT Is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT.
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Note 1.20 Corporation tax
The Trust has no corporation tax liability

Note 1.21 Third party assets

Assels belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest {such as money held on behalf of patients)
are not recognised in the accounis. However, they are disclosed in a separale note lo the accounts in accordance with
the requirements of HM Traasury’s FReM.

Note 1.22 Losses and speclal payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament woufd not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health
service or passed legislation. By their nature lhey are items that ideally should not arise. They are (herefore subject to
special control procedures compared with the generality of paymenis. They are divided into different categories, which
govem the way that individual cases are handied. Losses and special payments are charged 1o the relevant functional
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special paymenlts note is compiled directly from the losses and compensalions register which reports on
an accrual basis with the exceptlion of provislons for future losses.

Note 1.23 Gifts

Gifis are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectation of any retun. Gifts include
all transactions economically equivalent to free and unremuneraled transfers, such as the loan of an assel for ils
expecied useful life, and the sale or lease of assels al below market value.

Note 1.24 Transfers of functions to or fram other NHS bodles and local government bodles

For funclions that have been {ransfared to the trust from ancther body, the assets and Habilities transferred ara
recognised in the accounts as at the date of transfer. The assets and liabliities are nol adjusted to fair value prior to
recognition.[The net gain or loss coresponding to the net assels and liabilitles transferred Is recognised within income
and expenditure, but not within aperating activitles.

For property, plant and equipment assels and intangible assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation f amertisation
balances from the transfersing entity's accounls are preserved on recognition in the lrust’s accounts. Where the
transferring body recognised revaluation reserve balances atiributable o the assels, the trust makes a transfer from its
income and expendilure reserve to its revaluation reserve to maintain transparency within public sectar accounts.

For functions that the trust has transfarred to another body, the assets and liabilitles transferred are de-recognised from
the accounts as at the date of transfer. The net loss or gain corresponding to the net [assets and Jiablities] transferred
Is recognised within income and expenditure, but not within operating activities. Any revaluation reserve balances
attributable to assels de-recaognised are {ransferred to the income and expenditure reserve. [Adjustments to align the
acquired function to the trusl's accounting policies are applied after initia! recognition and are adjusted directly in
taxpayers’ equity.]

In 2019-20 Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust did not transfar or receive any assels from
another body



Note 1.25 Early adoption of standards, amendments and Interpretations
No new accounting standards ar revisions lo existing standards have been early adopted in 2019/20.

Note 1,26 Standards, amendments and Interpretations in Issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leasas, IFRIC 4 Defermining whather an arrangement conlains a lease and other
interpretations and is applicable in the public seclor for periods beginning 1 April 2021, The standard provides a single
accounting model for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the statement of financial position for
most leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedienis explained belaw, For those recognised
in the statement of financiat positfon the standard also requires the remeasuvrement of lease lfabilities In specific
circumstances afler the commencement of the lease term. For lessors, the dislinction between operating and finance
leases will remaln and the accounting will be largely unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The trust will apply this definition o new
leases only and will grandfather its assessmenis made under the old slandards of whether exisling contracis contain a
lease,

On lransitton to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the trust will apply the standard retrospeclivaely with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised In the Income and expenditure reserve al that date. For existing operating
leases with a remaining lease term of mare than 12 months and an underlying asset value of at least £5,000, a lease
liability will be recognised equal to the value of remalning lease payments discounted on transition at the trust's
incremental borrowing rate. The Trust's Incremenial borrowing rale will be a rale defined by HM Treasury, Currently this
rate is 1.27% but this may change between now and the adoption of the standard. The related right of use asset will be
measured equal to the lease lability adjusted for any prepald or accrued lease payments. For existing peppercom leases
nol classified as finance leases, a right of use asset will be measured at current value In existing use or falr value. The
difference between the assel value and the calculated lease liability will be recognised in the income and expendilure
reserve on transition. No adjustments will ke made on 1 April 2021 for exisling finance leases

For leases commencing in 2021/22, the trust will nol recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for shorl lerm leases
{less than or equal to 12 menths) or for leases of low value assels (less than £5,000}, Right of use assels will be
subsequently measured on a basis consistenl with owned assets and depreciated over the length of lhe lease term.

HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sactor to 1 April 2021 on 18 March 2020, Due
to the need lo reassess lease calculations, together with uncertainty on expected leasing activity from April 2021 and
beyond, a quantificalion of the expected impact of applying the standard in 2021-22 is currently impracticable. Howaver
lhe Trusi does expect this standard to have a material impact on non current assets, liabilitles and depreciation.

The Trust has commenced the assessment of the application of IFRS 16 to ils financial statements. This commenced
with work to identify leases which are currently operating leases and should be reclassified as finance leases as well as
a broader review of recurring expenditure streams where right to use assets may be embedded in contracling
arrangements. The work has progressed lo March 2020, when the Trust revised its operational priorities and working
patiemns to deal with the COVID13 pandemic and combined with the decision {o defer the implementalion of IFRS16 in
the NHS to 1 April 2021 means that it has not been practical to complete this work or present it for audit. The work to
identify the impact of this standard Is expected to recommence in Autumn 2020

Other standards, amendments and interpretations

IFRS 16 Accounting for Leases Is expected o apply from 1 April 2021, having been deferred from 1 April 2019 and again
from April 2020

Note 1.27 Critical judgements in applylng accounting policles

The following are the Judgements, apart fromn those invalving estimatlons (see below) that management has made in the
pracess af applying the trust accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

No significant critical judgements have been made in the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies
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Note 1.26 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other majar sources of estimation uncertainty thal have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and iiabilities within the next financial year:

- Under the terms of the operating lease on one of the Trust's propertles, the Hounslow & Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust was obliged 1o restore the building lo iis pre lease siale at the end of the lease period in January
2019. The Trust had made an eslimaled provision for dilapidations based on current market benchmarks in 2015-16. An
experl advisor was appoinled ta revise this provision and a repor received in September 2016. The provision has bean
adjusted to reflect the valuations in this report, which is based on industry standards, however # remains an estimale
until actual works are carried out. The value of the dilapidation provision was been left unchanged as at 31 March 2019,
Substantial work is being undertaken in the building which could impact on any fulure dilapidation costs and we will
review this provision once these are complete. The Trusl signed both an exiension to the lease and then a new 10 year
lease effective from 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2022 with a five year break clause. As saon as the refurbishment works are
complete the Trust will then review the fulure dilapidation requirements of the new lease.

- The Trust's property assets were subject to a full revalualion as at 31 March 2020. A desk top revaluation was carried
oul as at 31 March 2017 by the same valuer and using the same information provided for the full revaluation two years
previously. Inlernal desk top valuation has been underlaken both as at 31 March 2018 using locatlon faclor indices
relevant to the locality and as et 31 March 2019 using national indices.

The valuation exercise was carried out in March 2020 with a valuation date of 31 March 2020. In applying the Royal
Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation Global standards 2020 ('Red Book'), the valuer has declared a'*
matertal valuation uncertainty’ in the valuation repert, This on the basis of uncertainties in markets caused by COVID 19,
The vaiues in lhe report have been used to inform the measurement of property assets at valualion In these financial
statements, With the valuer having declared this materfal valuation uncertainty, the valuer has conlinued to exercise
professional judgement in providing the valuation and this remains the best information available to the Trust

- Itis Impracticable to disclose the extent of the possible effects of an assumption or anolher source of estimalion
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period. On the basis of existing knowledge, oulcomes within the next financial year
that are different from the assumption around the valuation of our land, property, plant and equipment could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability recorded in note 17



Note 2 Operating Segments
The Trus! operates as a single segment

A business segment is a group of assels and operations engaged in providing products or services
that are subject to sk and relums thal are different from other business segments. A geographical
segmenl is engaged in providing products or services within a paricular economic environment that is
subject to risks and retums that are different from those segments operating in different economic
environments. The directors consider that the Trust's activities constilute a single segment since they
are provided wholly in the UK, are subject to similar risks and rewards and all assets are managed as
one central pool
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Note 3 Operating income from patient care activities

Ali income from patient care aclivities relales to contract Income recegnised In line with accounting palicy 1.4

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2019720 201819
£600 £000
Community services
Community services income from CCGs and NHS England 63,500 57,488
Income from olher sources (e.y. local authorities) 5,422 8,798
All gervices
Private patient income N .
Agenda for Change pay award central funding® 674
Additional penslen canlribulion central funding** 2,120
Other clinlcal Income 290 -
Total income from activities 74,341 67,960

*Additional cosis of the Agenda for Change pay reform in 2018/49 received central funding, From 2019/20 this funding Is

incorporated Into tariff for individual services,

**The employer conlribution rate for NHS pensions incraased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge)
from 1 April 2019, For 2019/20, NHS providers conlinued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional
amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and relaled funding have been recognised in

these accounts.

Note 3.2 Incame from patient care actlvities (by source)

2019/20 201819
Income from patient care activities received from: £000 E£000
NHS England 5,741 2,702
Clinical commissioning groups 60,178 54,766
Depariment of Health and Social Care 7 685
Other NHS providers 1,740 3,388
NHS other - -
Local authorities 5,934 5,747
Nan-NHS: privale patients - -
Non-NHS: overseas patienis {chargeable to pallent) - -
Injury cost recavery scheme 199 81
Non NHS: ather 542 571
Total income from activitles 74,341 67,960
Of which:
Related 1o continuing operations 74,341 67,960

Reiated 1o discontinuad operations -
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Note 5.1 Additional Information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognlsed in the period

2019/20 2018149
£000 £000
Revenue racognised In the reporting period that was included in within contract
liabilities at the pravious period end 25 g
Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied (or parially salisfied) in
previous periods -
Note 5.2 Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations
31 March 31 March
2020 2019

Revenue from existing contracts alkacated to remaining performance abligalions is
expected 1o be recognised: £000 £000
within one year - -
afier one year, no! tater than five years - -

afier five years = -
Total revenue allocated to remaining performance cbllgations - -

The trust has exercised the practical expedienls permitted by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 in preparing this disclosure.
Revenue from (i} conlracts wilh an expected duration of one year or lass and {li) contracts where the trust recognlses
revenue directly corresponding to work done to date Is not disclosed.

Note 6.1 Fees and charges

HM Treasury requires disclosure of fees and charges incoma. The folfowing disclosure is of income from charges lo
service users where income from lhat service exceeds £1 million and is presented as the aggregate of such income. The
cost assoclated with the service that generaled the incoma |s also disclosed.

Tha Trust has not incurred any fees or charges
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Note 7.1 Operating expenses

2019/20 2018119
£000 £000
Purchase of healthcare from NHS and PHSC bedies 2,554 2,288
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 247 314
Staff and execulive directors costs 53,070 49,156
Remuneration of non-exacutive direclors 7 70
Supplies and services - clinical {excluding drugs costs) 6,706 6,410
Supplies and services - general 256 325
Drug costs (drugs invenlory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 157 138
Consultancy costs 115 353
Establishment 4178 2.773
Premises 2,682 1.810
Transpor {including patient travel) 47 32
Deprecialion on property, plant and equipment 1,899 2,076
Amortisation on intangible assets 5 4
Audit fees payable to the external auditor
audit services- statutory audit®* 45 43
Intermal audit costs 37 38
Clinical negligence 85 51
Legal fees 199 68
Insurance 25 51
Education and training 57 10
Rentals under operating leases 3,034 2,984
Haspitality - 5
Losses, ex gratia & special paymenls 5 7
Total 75,470 69,006
Of which:
Retated to continuing operalions 75,470 69,006

Related to discontinued operations

** Audil fee - fee payable o the external auditors is £37,100 ( excluding VAT of £ 7,420 )
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Note 7.2 Other auditor remuneration
There was no other auditor remuneration pald to the external audilor

Note 7.3 Limitation on auditor's liabllity
The limitation on auditor's liakility for external audit work is £2m (2018/19: £E2m).

Note 8 Impairment of assets
The Trus! has not impaired any assets in 2019-20. Nilin 2018-19
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Nots 9 Employee benefits

Salaries and wageas
Soclal security cosls
Apprenticeship levy
Employer's conlributions 1o NHS pensions
Temporary stafi {including agency)
Total gross staff costs
Recaveries In respect of seconded staff
Total staff costs
Of which
Cosls capitalised as part of assels

Note 9.1 Retirements due to lll-health

2019720 2018/19
Total Total
£000 £000

38,114 37,020
3,744 3,404
180 17
6,963 4,632
4,069 3,929
63,070 49,156

53,070 49,156

During 2019-20 there were no early relirements from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill health { none in the year
ended 31 March 2019). The eslimaled addilional pension liabllities of these Il health retirements Is £0k { £0k in 2018-19)

These estimated cosls are calculated on an average basls and will be bome by the NHS Pension Schame.
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Note 10 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Penslon Schemes. Delails of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP praciices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Walaes, They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS bodles to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liablfities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as it it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost 1o the NHS body of participating in each scheme is laken as equal
to the cantributions payahle to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligatlons recognised in the financial statements do nol differ malerially from those that
would be delermined at the reporling date by a formal acluarial valuation, the FReM requires that “lhe period between
formal valuations shall be lour years, wilh approximale assessments in intervening years™. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary {currently the Govemment Acluary’s
Department) as at Ihe end of the reporting period. This ulilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunclion with updated membership and financial data for the cusrent reporting period, and is accepled as
providing suitably robust fgures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liabiiity as at 31 March
2020, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2019, updaled to 31 March 2020 with summary global member and
accounting data. In underaking this acluarial assessment, the melhodology prescribed in 1AS 18, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rale prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilitles of the scheme is conlained In the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Penslon Scheme Accounts. These accaunts can be viewed on the NHS Penslons webslie and are
published annually. Copies can also be oblained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial {funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation Is to assess the [evel of liability in respect of the benefits due under lhe schemes {taking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rales payable by employees and
employers.

The latesl actuariat valuation undertaken for the NHS Penslon Scheme was completed as al 31 March 2016, The resuilts
of this valuation set the employer contributlon rate payabie fram April 2019 to 20.6% and the Scheme Regulations were

amended accordingly.

The 2016 funding valuation was alsc expecled 1o tes! the cost of the Scheme relalive lo the employer cosl cap set
following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Govemnment announced
a pause lo that parl of the valuation pracess pending conciusion of the conlinuing legal process.
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Note 11 Operating leases

Note 11.1 Hounstow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessor

This note discloses income generaled In operaling lease agreements where Hounslow and Richmond Community

Healthcare NHS Trus! is the lessor.

Operating lease revenue
Minimum lzase receipts
Tatal

Future minimum lease recelpts due:
- not later than one year,
- fater than ane year and not laler than five years;
- later than five years.

Tatal

2019/20 201819
£000 EQ00D
1,267 1,195
1,267 1,195
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
1,267 1,195
1,488 -
1,860 -
4,615 1,195

Note 11.2 Hounslow and Rlchmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessee
This note discloses costs and commitments incurrad in operaling lease arrangements where Hounslow and Richmond

Community Heallthcare NHS Trust is the lessee.

Haunslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHs Trust is the lessor for Thames House, Richmond and Kingston
CCGs are occupying this property on a sub lease arrangemenl!. HRCH are the head lease holders so the sub lease

arrangement aligns with our agreement which was renewed in June 2019 on a ten year lease.
Your Healihcare CIC [s the lessor for an inpatient ward at Teddington Memoriat Hospital, The (ease is agreed on a

rolling one year lease

Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments
Total

Future minimum lease payments due:
- nol {ater than one year,
- later than one year and not later than five years;
- later than five years.
Total
Future minimum sublease payments lo be received

2019/20 201819
£000 £000
3,034 2,984
3,034 2,984
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
3124 2,685
6,017 8,862
3,273 701
12,414 12,248

48



Note 12 Finance income
Finance income represenls inlerest received on assels and Investments in the period.

2019/20 201819

£000 £000

Interest on bank accounts 159 102
Total finance Income 158 102

Note 13.1 Finance expenditure
Finance expenditure represents interast and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing.

The Trust did not incur any expenditure on interest and other charges relaling lo the borrowing of money

Note 13.2 The late payment of commercial dehts (Interast) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015
The Trust did not Incur any inlerest due to [ale payment of commercial debts - -

Note 14 Other gains / {losses)

There are no Other Gains and Losses to repori in 2019-20. Nil in 2018-19
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Note 15 Discontinued operations

There were no discontinued operations
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Note 18 Donations of property, plant and equipment

In 2018-19, the Trust received income from the Richmond League of Friends to purchase or coniribute to the purchase
of fixed assels, The League of Friends made a donalion of £366k 1o fully fund the purchase of new radiology equipment
in the unit based al Teddinglon Memorial Hospital. A further £1688% was used as a contribution to the refurbishment
costs of the Urgent Treatment Centre at the same localion.

No further donalions to purchase fixed asseis have been made in 2018-20

Note 19 Revaluatlons of property, plant and equipment

The Trust's properly assets were subject ta a full revaluation on 31 March 2020, the [ast full evaluation having been in
March 2015, A desk top revalualion was underiaken as at 31 March 2017. All extemal valuations were undertaken by
the same District Valuer. At 31 March 2018 ( as al March 2018) the assets were subject lo a desk top valuation by
Trust experts. At 31 March 2018 the Assels were valued using local indices which better reflected the properly market
al that time. In March 2019 National indices were used to revalue the buildings which indicale a 0.9% increase in
value. However, after laking account of investment in the Trust proparties during 2018-19, a [oss on revaluation of 3.9%
was reporied.  The Trust commissioned a full external valuation in March 2020.

The valuation as al 31 March 2020 has been prepared having regard to market evidence and other data available from
the pernod prior and including BCIS and location factors. Full inspections during site visils were undertaken and
clarification sought on land and GIA floor areas. Due account was taken of material assel changes and investment
since the last desk top valuation in March 2017,

The exdernal valuer is considering as part of a RICS profession discussion forum, the potential impact of COVID 19 on
asset valuallons with a valuation date of 31 March 2020. They have therefore issued an RICS material valuation
uncertainty slalement and recommended an early impairment review.

The useful ecanomic lives have not materially changed.

Fixtures and filtings are camied at depreciated historic ¢cost and this is not considerad o be materially different from fair
value.

Note 20.1 Investment Property
The Trust does not hold any investment property
Note 20.2 Investment property income and expenses

The Trust does nol hold any investment properly

L
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Note 21 Investments in associates and joint ventures
The Trust does not have any Investments in associales or joinl venlures

Note 22 Other investments / financlal assets {(non-current)
The Trust does not have any olher inveslmenis/financial assels { non current)

Note 22.1 Other investments / financial assets (current)
The Trusi does nat have any other investments/financial assets (current)
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Note 23 Disclosure of interests In other entitles

The Trust does not have any interests in other entities to disclose.

Note 24 Inventories

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year ware £0k (2018/19; £0k). Write-down of inventories recognised as
expenses for the year were £0k (2018/19; £0k).

The Trust does not hold any inventories.



Note 25.1 Recelvables

Current
Contract receivables
Contract assels
Capital receivables
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets
Interest receivable
Finance lease receivables
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Corporation and other taxes receivable
Other receivables
Total current recelvables

Nen-current
Contract receijvables
Capital recelvables
VAT receivable
Corporation and other laxes receivable

Cther receivables
Total non-current recelvables

OFf which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Current
Non-current

59

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000

7.220 6,323
(13) {13}
134 152
31 3s
7,372 6,501
5,725 5418



Note 25.2 Allowances for credit loases

Allowances as at 1 April - brought forward
Pror period adjustmenls
Allowances as at 1 April - restated
Impact of implementing IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15) on 1
April 2018
Transfers by absorplion
New allowances arising
Changes in existing allowances
Allowances as at 31 Mar 2020

Note 25.3 Exposure to credit risk

2019/20 2018/18
Contract Contract
receivables receivablas
and contract All other and contract All other
assets receivables assets recelvables
£000 £000 £000 £000
13 - - 13
13 - - 13
13 (13)
13 - 13 -

Because the majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracis with other public seclor bodies, the Trust has low
exposure to cradit risk. The maximum exposures as al 31 March 2020 are in receivables from customers, as

disclosed in the trade and other receivables nole.
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Note 26 Other assats
The Trust does not have any other financial assets - current at 31 March 2020 ( nil at 31 March 2018)

Note 27.1 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposal groups

The Trust does nol have any cther financial assets - non current at 31 March 2020 ( nil at 31 March 2018)

Note 27.2 Liabliitles In disposal groups

The Trust does not have any liabllities in disposal groups
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Note 28.1 Cash and cash equivalents movements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents, Cash equivalents are readily
convertibie investiments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

2019120 2018/19
£000 £000
At t April 21,872 15,942
Prior periad adjustments -
At 1 April {restated) 21,872 15,942
Transfers by absorption 5 s
Net change In year 2,588 5,930
At 31 March 24,460 21,872
Broken down into:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand . -
Cash wilh the Governmenl Banking Service 24,460 214872
Deposits with the National Loan Fund - -
Other current investments - -
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 24,460 21,872
Bank overdrafis (GBS and commercial banks) - -
Drawdown in cammitted facility 5 -
Total cash and cash equivalenis as In SoCF 24,460 21,872

Note 28.2 Third party assets held by the trust

Hounsfow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate lo monies held
by the Trust on behall of patients or other parties and in which the trus! has no beneficial interest. This has been
excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
E000 £060

Bank balances - -
Monies on deposit 5 -
Totat third party assets 5 -

The Trust does not hold any third party assets
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Note 29.1 Trade and other payables

Current
Trade payables
Capilal payables
Accruais
Receipts in advance and paymenis on account
PF] lifecycle replacement received in advance
Social securily cosls
VAT payables
Other taxes payable
PDC dividend payable
Other payables
Total current trade and other payables

Non-current
Trade payables
Capilal payables
Accruals
VAT payables
Other laxes payable
Other payables
Total non-current trade and other payables

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodles:
Current
Non-current

Note 29.2 Early retirements in NHS payables above
The payables note above does not include any amounts in relation o early reliremenls

a1 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000
6,089 3,334
399 186
5,544 6,756
505 556
g 373

- 66
13,008 11,275
3,564 2,758



Note 30 Other labilitles

Current
Deferred income: contract liabilities
Deferred grants
Deferred PFI credits / income
Lease incentives
Other deferred income

Total other current liabilitles

Non-current
Deferred income: contract fiabilities
Deferred grants
Deferred PFI credits / income
Leass jncentives
Other deferred income
Net pension scheme liability

Tota! other non-current liabilltles

Note 31.1 Borrowings

There were no borrowings at 31 March 2020 { nll at 31 March 2019)

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000

53 25
53 25
- 25
- 25




Note 31.2 Reconcliation of liabillties arising from financing activities - 2019/20

The Trust does not have any liabilities arising from financing activities

Note 31.3 Reconciliation of liabllities arising from financing activitles - 2018/19

There were no other financial liabilities anising from finanncing activities at 31 March 2019

Note 32 Other financial liabilities

There were no other financlal liabilities at 31 March 2020 ( nil at 31 March 2019)
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Note 33 Finance leases

Note 33.1 Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessor
Future lease receipis due under finance lease agreemenis where the trust is the lessor:

The Trust does not currently have any finance lease obligations as a lessor
Note 33.2 Hounalow and Richmond Comimunity Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessee

The Trust does not have any finance lease obligalions as a lessee.
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Note 34.2 Clinical negligence liabilities

Al 31 March 2020, £1,585k was included in provisions of NHS Resolulion in respect of clinfcal negligence liabllities of
Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust (31 March 2019: £1,026k).

Note 35 Contingent assets and liabllitles

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
E000 £000

Value of contingent liabilitles
NHS Resolution legal claims - (5)
Employment tribunal and other employee related litigalion - -
Redundancy - -
Other - -
Gross value of contingent liabilities - {5}
Amounts recoverable against liabililies . -
Net value of contingant liabilities - (5)

Net value of contingent assets
Note 36 Contractual capital commitments
The Trust dues nol have any Contractual Capital Commilments at 31 March 2020 ( nll at 31 March 2019)

Note 37 Other financlal commitments

The Trusl does not have any other financial commitments at 31 March 2020 ( nil at 31 March 2019)

[43]
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Note 37 Defined beneflt penslion schemes

The Trust does not operate a defined benefit pension scheme
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Note 37.1 Changes In the defined benefit abligation and fair value of plan assets during the year

The Trust does not operale a defined benefit pension scheme

Note 37.2 Reconclliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the present value of the plan
assets to the assets and ilabllities recognised in the balance sheet

The Trust does not operale a defined benefit pension scheme
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Note 38 On-SoFP PFl, LIFT or other sarvice concesslton arrangements
The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

Note 38.1 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligations

Hounslow and Richmond Community Heaithcare NHS Trust has no obligations In raspect of the finance lease element
of an-Statement of Financial Position PFl and LIFT schemes:

Note 3B.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concessfon arrangement commitments

The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements
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Note 38.3 Analysls of amounts payable to service concesasion operator

The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFI, LIFT or olher service concesslon arrangements
Note 38 OH-SoFP PFl, LIFT and other service concesslon arrangements

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust incutred no charges in respect of off-Slatement of Financial
Paosition PF1 and LIFT arrangements;
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Note 40 Financial instruments

Note 40.1 Financlal risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure af lhe role that financial instruments have had during the pericd
in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its aclivities. Because of the conlinuing service provider
relationship that the NHS Trust has with [commissioners] and the way those [commissioners) are financed, the NHS
Trust is not exposed to the degree of financlal risk faced by business enfities. Also financial instruments play a much
more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of isted companies, to which the financial reporting
slandards mainiy apply. The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS
Trust in undertaking ils activities,

The Trust's Ireasury management operations are camied out by the finance department, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the board of directors. Trust treasury
aclivity is subject to review by the Trusl's inlemal audilors.

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a domeslic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assels and liabilities being in the
UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trusl therefore has low exposure to currency rate

fluctualions
Interest rale risk

The Trust borrows from govemnmenl for capital expenditure, subfect lo affordability as confirmed by NHS improvement.
The borrowings are for 1 — 25 years, in ling with the life of the assoclated assels, and inferest Is charged at the National
Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposure o interest rale flucluations.

The Trusi may also borrow from gavemment for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement. Interesl
rales are confirmed by the Department of Health and Sccial Care ( the lender) at (he point the borrowing is underaken

The Trust therefore has low exposure to inferest rale fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the Trusl's revenue comes from conlracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low

exposure lo credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2013 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed
in the trade and other receivables nole

Liquidity risk
The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contracts with pimary care Trusts, which are financed from resources

vated annually by Pariament . The Trust funds iis capital expenditure from funds obtained within its prudentia!
borrowing limil. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed lo significant liquidity risks.



Note 40.2 Carrylng values of financial assets

Camrylng values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020

Trade and olher receivables excluding non financial assets
Other invesiments / financial assels
Cash and cash equivalenls

Total at 31 March 2020

Carrylng vaives of financial assats as at 31 March 2019
Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assels
Other Investments / financlal assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2019

Note 40.3 Carrylng values of financlal liabilitles

Carrying values of financlal liabiflties as at 31 March 2020

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care
Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts

Other borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Other financial liabllities
Fravisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2020

Carrying values of financlal liabillties as at 31 March 20189

Loans from Ihe Department of Health and Soclal Care
Obfigations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts

Other borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2018
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Held at Held at Held at
amortised falr value fair value Total
cost through |I&E through OClI book value
£000 £000 £000 £000
7.220 - - 7,220
24,460 - - 24 480
31,680 - - 31,680
Heid at Held at Held at
amortlsed fair value falr value Total
cost through I&E through OCl  book value
£000 £000 E00Q0 £000
6,349 - - 6,349
21,872 - - 21,872
28,221 - - 28,221
Held at Held at
amortised fair value Total
cost through &€ book value
£000 £000 E£000
12,032 - 12,032
12,032 . 12,032
Held at Held at
amortlsed falr value Total
coat through IBE  hook value
£000 £000 £000
9,550 - 9,550
9,550 - 9,550




Note 40.4 Maturity of financlal liabllities

In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years

In more than two years bul not more than five years

In more than five years
Total

Note 40.5 Falr values of financlal assets and llabllitles

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
£000 £000

12,032 9,550
12,032 9,550

Book value is a reasonable approximation of fair value for each relevant class of financial assets and liabilities.
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Note 41 Loases and specia! payments

Losses
Cash losses
Fruitless payments
Bad debts and claims abandoned
Stores iosses and damage to property
Total iosses
Special payments

Compensalion under court order or legally binding
arbitration award

Extra-cantractual payments

Ex-gralia payments

Special severance payments

Extra-statulory and extra-regulatory payments
Total special payments
Totzl losses and special payments
Compensation payments received

Note 42 Gifts

There are no gifls to disclose

2019120 2018119
Total Total

nurnber of Total value numberof Total value
cases of cases cases of cases
Number £000 Number £000

: 3 4

1 1 1 -

1 1 4 4

1 . 1 2

1 - 1 2

2 1 5 §
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Note 43 Related parties

During the year none of the Department of Health and Social Care Ministers, Hounslow & Richmond
Community Healthcare NHS Trust board members or members of the key management staff, or parties
related to any of them, have undertaken any material transactions with Hounslow & Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust

The Depariment of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year, Hounslow &
Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the
Department and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

Receipts Payments Amounls Amounts

from to Related duefrom owedto
Related Party Related Related
Party Party Party
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Ealing CCG 1,069 0 695 0
Hounsiow CCG 33,995 0 1,897 0]
Richmoand CCG 23,8583 0 747 0
Kingston CCG 840 0] 287 0
NW Surrey CCG 240 0 70 0
Surrey Downs CCG 438 0 27 0
NHS England 4,947 o 755 0
Guys and St Thomas NHS Foundation Trust ] 1,710 110 449
Chelsea and Westminster NHS Foundation Trust 796 195 652 503
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 128 319 149 239
Croydon Health Services NHS Trust 162 0 354 0
Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust 164 0 204 0
St George's Healthcare NHS FT 224 7 269 78
South West London & 5t George's NHS Trust a2 0 7 0
West London Mental Health NHS Trust 33 217 3 93

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and
other central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with Local Authorities

Receipts Payments Amounts Amounts

from to Related duefrom owedto
Related Party Reiated Related
Party Party Party
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Londan Borough of Hounslow 4,922 0 901 120
Laendon Borough of Richmond upon Thames 805 590 & 583
London Borough of Merton 199 0 2 0

The Trust has also received £9k payment (£9k in 2018-19) from the charitable fund it hasts for the
administralion and governance of the fund. The Trust Board is the trustee of the fund and some board
members are also members of the Charitable Funds Committee. The summary financial statements of the
Funds Held on Trust are not included in these accounts They are reported separately to the Charities
Commission.



Note 44 Transfers by absorption

There are no transfers by absorption

Note 45 Prior period adjustments

There are no prior period adjustments

Note 46 Events after the reporting date

There were no avenls afler the reporting period
Note 47 Final perlod of operation as a trust providing NHS healthcare

The Trust continues to aperate as a trust of NHS Healthcare
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Note 48 Better Payment Practice code

Non-NHS Payables
Tolal non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Parcentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within
target

NHS Payables
Tolal NHS trade invoices paid in the year
Total NHS trade Involces paid within target

Percenlage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

2019/20 2015/20 2018M19 2018119
Number £000 Number £000
16,157 32,368 18,336 31,386
15,034 31,707 17,434 30,740

93.0% 98.0% 895.1% 87.9%
884 8,145 699 7,201

842 7,718 690 7.173

95.2% 94.8% 98.7% 99.8%

The Betler Payment Practice code requires the NHS body ta aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30

days of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later.

Note 43 External financing Jimit

The trust is given an external fnancing limit against which it is permitied to underspend

Cash flow financing
Finance leases taken out in year
Other capilal receipls

External financing requiremant

External financing limit (EFL)
Under / {(over) spend against EFL

Note 50 Capital Resource Limit

Gross capital expenditure

Less: Dispasals

Less; Donated and granted capital additlons

Plus: Loss on disposal from capifal grants in kind
Charge against Capltal Resource Limit

Capital Resource Limit
Under/ (over) spend agalnst CRL

Note 51 Breakeven duty financial performance

Adjusied financial performance surplus / {deficit) {conirol total basis)
Remove Impairments scoring to Deparimental Expendilure Limit

Add back income for impact of 2018/19 post-accounts PSF reallocation
Add back non-cash element of On-SofP pension scheme charges

IFRIC 12 breakeven adjustment

Breakeven duty financial performance surplus / {deficit)
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2018/20 2018119
£000 £000
(2.588) (5.930)
(2,588) {5,930)
(1,659) (1,349)
929 2,581
2019120 2018/19
£000 £000
1,837 2,550
(534)

1,837 2,018
1,890 2,045
53 29
2019120

£000

1,721
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Note 52 Breakeven duty rolling assessment

1997/98 lo
2008/09  2009M0  2010/11 201112 201213 2013744
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Breakeven duty in-year financial
performance - 1,667 704 2,792
Breakeven duty cumulalive position - - - 1,667 2,371 5,183
Operaling incame - - 54,480 59,339 64,212
Cumulative breakeven position as a
percentage of operating Income 0.0% 0.0% 3.1% 4.0% 8.0%
201415 201516  2016M7  2017MB 20189 201920
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Breakeven duty in-year financial
perormance 679 1,919 2,962 4,068 3,742 1,721
Breakeven duty cumulalive position 5,842 7,761 10,723 14,791 18,533 20,254
Operating income 65,816 68,489 70,511 71,462 73,853 77,666
Cumulative breakeven position as a
percentage of operating income 8.9% 11.3% 15.2% 20.7% 25.1% 26.1%




NHS

Hounslow and Richmond

Community Healthcare
NHS Trust

Annual review
2019-20




Contents

Introduction from the chairman and chief executive
Overview and key achievements

About the trust

Our people

Our Board

Our strategy

Key service changes and managing risk

Performance summary

Language support

10
12
14
17
18
20
21
22




Introduction from chairman
and chief executive

Sian Bates, chairman Patricia Wright, chief executive

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust continues to play a vital
role in improving the health and wellbeing of around 523,000 people registered with
GPs in the boroughs of Hounslow and Richmond.

We continue to be impressed by our employees’ dedication, hard work and willingness
to go the extra mile, delivering outstanding care to the people we serve. This was
particularly true in the last two months of the year, February and March 2020, when
our attention turned to responding to the coronavirus pandemic.

Qur colleagues at all levels and across all services exemplified the values of the trust

by activating our pandemic plans and responding to guidance from NHS England/
Improvement about what services should be prioritised and what should be paused.
People adapted very quickly to new ways of working, volunteered to take on new roles
and supported each other through this difficult period. Our thanks go to all of you.

In addition, we would like to record our thanks to all the members of the public,
volunteers, voluntary organisations, schools, restaurants and many more who provided
protective equipment, meals for staff, taxied staff to and from work, sewed, knitted,
clapped and raised money to support the NHS at this time. We couldn’t have done it
without you.

Our thanks go to all of you...
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Quality of care

Following the publication of the NHS Long

Term Plan, we continued to boost our out-of-

hospital care and deliver urgent community
response and recovery support in Primary
Care Networks (PCNs).

During 2019-20, working closely with our
commissioners, we developed a Care Home
Support Team in Richmond to support the
17 care homes in the borough and help
patients who need health care to stay safely
in their homes, so they can avoid having to
be admitted to hospital if they do not need
hospital care. We are also extending this
concept to Hounslow.,

This was particularly helpful when the
coronavirus pandemic hit the community,

particularly care homes, which we supported
throughout.

In 2019, we continued to win awards and

to be shortlisted for prestigious national
awards. We won the Public Sector Paperless
Award for Best Use of e-Forms for our schools
immunisation programme consent forms, We
were shortlisted for a Nursing Times Patient
Safety Award and for four HS) Patient Safety
Awards for our acclaimed Never Events.

The Wheelchair Hub in Hounslow had some
great successes in 2020, with international
recognition for their work. The tearn were
shortlisted in the Evaluating Health and Social
Care Practice category for the Advancing
Healthcare Awards.

They also had a paper accepted for the
European Seating Symposium, about the
use of specialist moulded seating in disability
sports. The team were also shortlisted for a
Coundail of Allied Health Professions Research
(CAHPR) Award.

One You Hounslow was awarded the Chelsea
and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust Award for Research, Innovation &
Quality improvement in 2020 for their

work with pregnant women trying to stop
smoking.

Louise Brem-Wilson, our voluntary services
coordinator, and the O-Block physiotherapy
admin team based at West Middlesex
Hospital were nominated in the Work
Experience Employer of the Year category for
the Spark! Awards.

Then Nicola Wood, our Wheelchair Hub
clinical specialist, was nominated by the
Institute of Physics and Engineering in
Medicine for the Karen Burt Memorial
Award. The award recognises excellence and
potential in the practice of engineering as
well as contributions made by the candidate
to the promotion of the engineering
profession.




Qur two IV specialist nurses, Jacqui Williams
and Nicole Moodley, had an article about
their work published in the British Journal

of Nursing. The article locked at their work
setting up the collaborative community
intravenous therapy service and innovative
practice to allow patients to receive treatment
at home that would previously only be
available in hospital. Nicole and Jacqui were
runners up in the vascular access nurse of the
year category of the BIN Awards 2019.

In addition, immunisation lead nurse Heidi
Neilson was awarded the Cavell Star Award
for showing exceptional care to patients,
families and her team - the trust’s first.

She was nominated by her colleagues for
her professional support, compassionate
approach to patients and excellent
communication style.

Trust strategy

In support of the NHS Long-Term Plan,

we have been developing integrated
multidisciplinary teams to improve the way
primary care, community health and social
care professionals work in partnership with
acute hospitals.

We continue to boost our out-of-hospital
care and deliver urgent community response
and recovery support in Primary Care
Networks (PCNs).

We are also members of the North West
London and the South West London Health
and Care Partnerships, which have a renewed
emphasis on the themes of ‘Start well, Live
well, Age well’.

At borough level, we are taking a lead

on community health services, as part of
the Hounslow and Richmond Health and
Care provider alliances and are working

in partnership with the Hounslow GP
Consortium and the Richmond GP Alliance
to redesign services, focused on coordinated
care and improved patient outcomes.

We are actively involved in integrated care
redesign groups, leading on community
services core contract work in north west
London. For example, our chief executive,
Patricia Wright, is leading on the community
beds workstream.

We achieved a great deal despite financial
constraints, the need to develop new
relationships and continued workforce
pressures,
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Engaging with residents
and patients

During the year our children’s services held

a successful staff and patient engagement
event, with more than 200 attendees,
including families, children and young people.
It was a great way to get invaluable feedback
and suggestions to shape the future of
services. We received exceptionally positive
feedback from patients and staff.

QOur One You Hounslow team have been
helping local food banks by donating the
prize money they won in a Hounslow Beat
the Street competition in 2019. The team also
left leaflets promoting their popular Cook and
Eat sessions and plan to do more work with
food banks in the future to help people cook
on a budget. As a healthcare organisation, we
know the importance of good nutrition, so
this is a great example of partnership working.

To mark Diabetes Week 2019, the Richmond
Diabetes Team held a Let’s Talk Diabetes event
in Twickenham to share all that is current in
the world of diabetes. Alongside information
stands from different service providers, there

was a packed agenda of presentations, from
the history of diabetes to the possibility of
remission for patients with Type 2, new
treatments and technologies.

The Wheelchair Hub, in partnership with
charity Go Kids Go, organised a wheelchair
skills workshop in 2019. The workshop aimed
to promote independence and increase safety
by developing children’s manual wheelchair
skills. The team had a great turnout of
children and families from Hounslow who had
the opportunity to trial active user wheelchairs
and gain a better understanding about how
to overcome challenges that wheelchair users
may experience, such as kerb climbing when
crossing roads and learning safe evacuation
techniques.

HRCH colleagues were out in force at the
West Middlesex Hospital annual open day in
2019, Staff from community nursing, bladder
and bowel, One You Hounslow, the specialist
IV service, Community Recovery Service,
Integrated Community Response Service and
the learning disability health team all took
part.




We developed a Home Care
Support Team in Richmond to
support the 17 care homes in

the borough and help patients
who need health care to stay
safely in their homes

For the second year running, the Hounslow
Integrated Community Response Service
attended the Joint Services Day at Bedfont
Lakes as an opportunity to show the public
who we are and what we do.

Finally, dementia specialists Theresa Keegal
and Nina Jalota were at the Richmond Full
of Life Fair at Twickenham Rugby Stadium to
promote the service and provide important
information about supporting people with
dementia.

Our services and people

We have been working with Hounslow GPs
on several services, including our Primary
Care Patient Coordination Service, which
assists Hounslow GP practices to deliver
joined-up, proactive and planned patient
care.

In addition, we continue to work closely
with Richmond GPs via our partnership
with the Richmond GP Alliance, which is
called Richmond Community Healthcare in
Partnership (RCHiP).

During 2019-20, working closely with our
commissioners, we developed a Home Care
Support Team in Richmond to support the
17 care homes in the borough and help
patients who need health care to stay safely
in their homes, so they can avoid having

to be admitted to hospital if they do not
need hospital care. This team has been

very successful and has seen a reduction in
patients being admitted to Kingston Hospital.

In Hounslow the Speech and Language
Service are running a programme of regular
training for all Hounslow nursing homes. This
teaches nursing homes staff how to identify
patients who are having problems eating and
drinking. In addition, we have a hotline that
offers rapid advice to nursing homes and GPs
if they feel a care home resident needs to go
to hospital.

We are also taking part in a national
programme to stop over-medicating
people with learning disabilities, autism

or both (STOMP). A multidisciplinary team
of psychiatrists, pharmacists and positive
behaviour support practitioners (PBS)
identified 55 patients who met the criteria.

Around 80% of HRCH staff have become
Dementia Friends — 884 people in total. In
2019 we set a target to sign up 75% of staff
by Christmas and were delighted to pass this
significant milestone.
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Dementia

Friend &

-

The Alzheimer's Society Dementia Friends
programme is the biggest initiative to
change people’s perceptions of dementia.
It's about learning more about dementia
and the small ways you can help.

Every single member of our staff is
fundamental to our mission to provide

care and services that we and our families
would want to use. We are committed to
constantly improving HRCH as a great place
to work. We have also taken steps to ensure
we have an inclusive workforce that feels
listened to and is engaged.

As part of our staff rewards and recognition
programme, we were delighted to welcome
200 employees from across the trust to

the Twickenham Stoop in November 2019
for our annual staff awards ceremony.

They shared in the successes of colleagues
who received awards for their dedication,
professionalism and compassion.

Our performance

Our staff survey results placed us in the top
three community trusts in the country for
quality and safety, and workforce stability,
according to the analyst company Listening
into Action. Its analysis of the 2019 staff
survey results concluded that quality and
safety of patient care depends on the
wellbeing, morale and sustainability of
frontline staff members. We are very proud
of this result.

Our staff survey results placed
us in the top three community

trusts in the country for
quality and safety and
workforce stability

We came top out of all community trusts
in the country in 15 questions, including
being able to do my job to a standard | am
personally pleased with (84.9%) and ability
to deliver care | aspire to (78.2%).

In addition, out of 90 questions, 48 responses
improved since 2018 and almost 8 out of 10
of colleagues would recommend the trust as
a place to receive treatment {78.9%).

During the year, we also heard that we were
the highest-scoring trust in London and the
third best nationally in the inaugural Freedom
to Speak Up Index, which used the results of
the previous year's Staff Survey to understand
how staff perceive the ‘speaking up’ culture.

We scored 85%, with the highest FTSU
index at 87%. This is not only a fantastic
achievement for the trust but highlights
efforts across the organisation to foster a
culture in which we learn from mistakes and
encourage reporting of incidents to improve
safety.



We were delighted that so many of our
patient-facing staff were vaccinated against
flu (84.65%). It was great to see our
employees being so proactive and responsible
in protecting our patients, themselves and
their families by ensuring they were not
passing on the virus to other people.

Thank you and goodbye

We had some changes to our board and
executive team in 2019-20, saying gocdbye
to our former chairman, Steve Swords, and
Non-Executive Director Ajay Mehta. We
wish them well in their new ventures. Ginny
Colwell, previously our Board Advisor, was
appointed to the Non-Executive Director role
left vacant following Ajay’s departure.

We were sorry to say goodbye to Steve and
Ajay, but were pleased to welcome our new
chairman, Sian Bates, who also continues

in her current separate role as chairman of
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.

We would like to:

» acknowledge the professionalism of
our staff who provided caring and
compassionate services for local people,
despite the considerable challenges
of coronavirus preparations, on top of
continuing financial restraints in the NHS
and new ways of working

* thank Teddington Memorial Hospital
League of Friends for funding the
refurbishment of the urgent treatment
centre at Teddington Mermorial Hospital
- we are extremely grateful for their
continuing support and our patients and
visitors are seeing the benefits of a great
new waiting and reception area

» thank our partners: Hounslow GP
Consortium; Richmond GP Alliance; North
West London Collaboration of CCGs,
Hounslow CCG and South West London
CCG; local acute and mental health trusts;
the voluntary sector; and Healthwatch
Hounslow and Richmond - they have
supported the redesign of services and
held us to account for the quality of care
we provide.
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Overview and key achievements

Dverview

1,007,440

patient/user contacts
a year

1 ,444 community

rapid response referrals

L+

364 patients

admitted to Teddington
Memorial Hospital
inpatient ward

1 08,451 urgent treatment centre attendances at West Middlesex Hospital

47 ,451 urgent treatment centre attendances at Teddington Memorial Hospital

8, 841 the total

number of days patients

were in beds on
l .I

the ward

78,453

adult physiotherapy
appuointments

@
oA

29,306 people

told us about their care and
treatment, compared to

21,965 in 2018-18 \/

236,082 i

nursing and community
matron appointments

960/0 of patients

said they had been
listened to

2 7 753 patient/user

contacts on average

every day .
°n
¥

970/0 of patients said

they were treated with respect
and in dignified ways

1 ,1 89 members of

staff at March 2020

76,704

health visitor
appointments




72,950 people

reached by Facebook,
Twitter and Instagram
health promotion
messages

000

743 people referred

to exercise programmes
to improve long-term
illnesses o

1 78 pecple helped

with community
referrals to a variety
of social, creative

and communication
schemes and activities

5 y 044 smokers

helped to quit since
One You Hounslow
stop smoking service

started
__}\
~

4,21 6 people

visited the One You
Hounslow website

300 children

participated in
the ChangeA4life
programme

0, @

371 people

attended our free
Cook and Eat
sessions

1 ,439 joined our

heaith walks programme

Public Sector Paperless Award for
Best Use of e-Forms for schools
immunisation programme

One You Hounslow awarded
Chelsea and Westminster FT Award
for Research, Innovation & Quality
Improvement for work with
pregnant women trying to stop
smoking.

Immunisation lead nurse Heidi
Neilson awarded Cavell Star Award
for exceptional care for patients,
families and her team

84.65% of patient-facing colleagues
vaccinated against flu

Shortlisted for Nursing Times Patient
Safety Award for Never Events

Shortlisted for 4 HSJ Patient Safety
Awards for Never Events

Shortlisted in the Evaluating Health
and Social Care Practice category for
the Advancing Healthcare Awards

Louise Brem-Wilson, voluntary
services coordinator, and O
Block physiotherapy admin team
nominated as Work Experience
Employer of the Year for Spark!
Awards

Nicola Wood, Wheelchair Hub
clinical specialist, nominated by
Institute of Physics and Engineering
in Medicine for Karen Burt
Memorial Award

IV specialist nurses, Jacqui Williams
and Nicole Moodley, runners up in
vascular access nurse of the year BJN
Awards 2019
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About the trust

HRCH provides community health services for
around 523,039 people registered with GPs
in the Landon boroughs of Hounslow and
Richmond, but also serves a wider population
across south London for a range of more
specialist services.

Every day our professionals provide high-
quality heatthcare in people’s homes and
convenient local clinics. We help people to
stay well in the community, manage their
own health with the right support and
avoid unnecessary trips to, or long stays in,
hospital.

We received a "Good' rating from the CQC in
2018 and expected to be inspected in early
2020. However, this was postponed due to
the coronavirus pandemic.

What we do and
where we are

During 2019-20 we provided about 70
community, urgent care and primary care
services, delivering on our mission

“To provide outstanding care
and services that we and our
families would want to use”.

We employ about 1,100 people who work
across a wide range of health centres,
hospitals, GP surgeries, children’s centres,
schools, local council facilities and in
community settings, including in people’s
homes.

We provide most of our services in the
boroughs of Hounslow and Richmond,
but also provide services over a wide
geographical area across London.

A summary of the services we
provide is outlined below and you
can find more information at: www.
hrch.nhs.uk/our-services

Adult services

* Community nursing, therapies,
in-patient unit

= Urgent Care and Urgent
Treatment Centres

= Hounslow Integrated Community
Response Service, Hounslow
Community Recovery Service and
Richmond Rapid Response Team

Specialist services

= Neurorehabilitation, continence,
continuing care and
lymphoedema services

Children’s services

* Paediatric (child development,
continuing care, therapies),
universal children’s services (health
visiting, community nursing,
Family Nurse Partnership),
audiology, Hounslow school
nursing

Childhood immunisations

« Richmond, Kingston, Bromley,
Bexley, Croydon, Greenwich,
Lambeth, Merton, Sutton,
Southwark and Wandsworth

Health and wellbeing

* One You Hounslow

* One You Merton

* Help Yourself to Health Sutton




Our service areas

Our main service areas are in Hounslow and
Richmond, but we provide care in other
boroughs, including the south London school
immunisations programme and children’s
audiology in Acton.

We provide community health
services for around 523,039
people registered with GPs

in the London boroughs of
Hounslow and Richmond
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Our people

The NHS People Plan aims to make the NHS
the best place to work, with compassionate
and inclusive leadership and the delivery

of 21st century care. Our employees are
fundamental to our success in delivering
high-quality patient care.

We are immensely proud of our staff, the
care we deliver and the fact that more than
95% of our patients consistently say they
would recommend our services. We employ
a skilled workforce of around 1,100 people.
We support them in aiming to be the best
they can be, across dlinical and non-clinical
services, and in contributing to the delivery of
high-quality, patient-centred care.

The people we employ reflect the diverse
backgrounds of the communities we serve.
We have good representation of women and

people from diverse ethnic backgrounds in
senior positions, while our Trust Board is one
of the most diverse boards in the country.

Our approach to developing our workforce
is set out in our Workforce Strategy and the
supplementary Learning, Development and
Organisational Development Strategy, which
were co-developed with staff.

However, we are not complacent and
recognise that a heaithy, engaged
workforce is critical to the delivery of high-
quality care and we continue to invest in
interventions that will allow staff to be the
best they can be.

We are immensely proud

of our staff, the care we
deliver and the fact that more
than 95% of our patients
consistently say they would
recommend our services

S




Some of this year’s highlights include:

Trust and staff awards: We continue to invest in our much-valued staff annual
and champion awards.

Equality, diversity and inclusion: Our Celebrating Diversity events continue
to be popular, celebrating and raising awareness of our employees’ range of
backgrounds and experiences and the positive impact this can have on the way we
care for patients.

Apprenticeships: We continued to promote apprenticeships as a gateway

to careers in the NHS and to create a skilled, diverse, flexible and motivated
waorkforce. We now have 24 apprentices across the trust including three nursing
associate apprentices. These programmes help improve the diversity of our
workforce and open employment opportunities to young people from our local
communities, who are under-represented in our staff groups.

e-Rostering: Our rostering system is embedded throughout the Trust. It enables
us to reduce unfilled shifts and use our bank staff more for temporary cover,
cutting down on agency costs.

Agile working: We reviewed all our estate to ensure it is fit for purpose and
facilitated more agile working for staff by creating hot desks at our sites and
ensuring staff have access to technology that aids remote working.

Wellbeing: Highlights from this year include our employee wellbeing group
hosting a programme of wellbeing events across the trust, including health
checks, tai chi taster sessions, team mindfulness sessions, nutrition and weight
management advice and free stop-smoking support throughout October and
November as part of our employee wellbeing months.
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NHS Staff Survey 2019

Each year we take part in the annual national
NHS Staff Survey to receive feedback from
staff on their experience of working here,

to monitor trends and measure the impact

of changes we have made in response to
feedback. The results from the staff survey are
incredibly important to us, as we get to hear
what people really think about working here.

The analyst company Listening into Action
placed us in the top three community trusts
for quality and safety, and workforce stability,
Its analysis of the 2019 staff survey results
concluded that quality and safety of patient
care depends on the wellbeing, morale and
sustainability of frontline staff members. We
are very proud of this result.

We were pleased that 745 colleagues
participated in the latest survey, which is
67.1% of our workforce. This is a brilliant
response and means we have some rich,
valid data to show us where we can make
improvements,

We came top out of all
community trusts in the country
in 15 questions, including:

* being able to do my job to a standard i
am personally pleased with (84.9%)

* having adequate materials, supplies
and equipment to do my work (72%)

= relationships at work are not strained
(60%)

« ability to deliver care | aspire to
(78.2%)

* people agreeing the trust encourages
people to report errors, near misses
and incidents (95.3%)

* people agreeing their department
or directorate collects patients’ and
service users’ feedback (97.6%)

Out of 90 questions, 48 responses
improved since 2018, including
positive views of:

* jobs and teamwork

* quality

* support from immediate managers
* health and wellbeing

« efficacy of appraisals

In addition, almost 8 out of 10
of colleagues would recommend
the trust as a place to receive
treatment (78.9%).

Staff Friends and Family
Test

In addition to the annual NHS Staff Survey,
our people feed back their views via a
quarterly Staff Friends and Family Test survey.
In 2019-20, for the third year running, 90%
of colleagues told us they would recommend
HRCH to friends and family as a place to
receive care or treatment. Furthermore, 74%
of our employees would recommend HRCH
as a place to work (3% higher than the
previous year).

People development

We are committed to training, learning and
development for all our people and offer

a wide range of opportunities including
support for clinical education, Apprentices,
coaching and mentoring. In 2019 we
organised an engagement and development
away day for our administrative workforce
which included workshops on interviewing,
CV building and tools and resources to
support their development.



Our board

Our board reflects the diversity of the people we serve and is recognised nationally as one of
the top three most diverse boards in London. During 2019-20, Steve Swords stood down as
chairman and was replace by Sian Bates, who is our Chair in Common with Kingston Hospital
Foundation Trust. Ajay Mehta resigned from the Board to take up a Non-executive Director
(NED) post at Chelsea and Westminster FT and Ginny Colwell, previously Board Advisor, became

a voting NED.

Executive directors

David Hawkins
Director of Finance and
Corporate Services

Patricia Wright
Chief Executive

Anne Stratton

Director of Clinical Services
(LB Hounslow /

NW London)

Stephen Hall

Director of Clinical Services
(LB Richmond /

SW London)

Non-executive directors

Fyd

Judith Rutherford,

Sian Bates,
Chairman Non-Executive Director

(Vice Chair)

Phil Hall,
Non-Executive Director

Joanne Hay,
Non-Executive Direclor

A

Donna Lamb
Director of Nursing and
Non-Medical Professionals

Dr John Omany
Medical Director

- il _.%'
Alison Heeralall
Director of Workforce
and Communications

Monique Carayol
Director of Strategy and
Transformation

|G

Bindesh Shah,
Non-Executive Director
{Senior Independent Director)

Ginny Colwell,
Non-Executive Director

Annual Review 2019/20




Our strategy

The year 2019-20 represented year two of
implementing the latest trust strategy (2018-
23). A review of the ambition in the strategy
confirmed that our vision holds true and is
entirely in line with the NHS Long Term Plan.

Our vision for 2019 and
beyond

In five years from now we will be at the
forefront of improving the health and
wellbeing of our local population. People
who experience care from HRCH will be
able to describe that they have had an
outstanding experience and we will be able
to demonstrate that care is consistently
safe and effective. We will do this in a way
that uses resources efficiently and adds the
greatest value.

Our vision is that people will live
healthier lives through high-quality, effective
and coordinated care.

To achieve our vision we will work in much
closer partnership with the whole resource
available to us in the communities we serve;
our staff, patients/clients and their families,
other providers and commissioners of health
and social care, the voluntary sector and local
businesses; to achieve improved outcomes
for our local communities.

Our mission is to provide outstanding
care and services that we and our families
would want to use. It describes what we do
and why.

Our values describe our beliefs and
shape how we all behave including how we
deliver care, manage our services, interact
with patients, carers and colleagues and
collaborate with our partners.

e Care HIGH QUALITY SAFE CARE WITH COMPASSION

@ RESPECt DIGNITY AND RESPECT TO PATIENTS AND COLLEAGUES

o Communication LISTENING AND COMMUNICATING CLEARLY




What did we achieve in 2019-20?

In years one and two of our long-term strategy, we achieved all our short-
term objectives, including refreshing our supporting strategies. About 425
colleagues were directly engaged in developing our quality and clinical
strategy and we are also rolling out our updated workforce strategy.

LONG TERM
2021-23

SHORT TERM

2018-19

MEDIUM TERM
2019-21

Create organisational
maodels that will ensure
the sustainability of
care closer to home for
the future

Be a lead partner in
integrated care systems

Refresh supporting
strategies

Strengthen the culture
and methadology for
change to support quality
improvement

Be assessed as
'Outstanding’ by our
regulators

Continue to support
radical innovation and
experimentation that
will transform the way
care is provided now
and in the future

Deliver estates and
technology plans to
support innovative care
provision

Continue to build on and
test new ways of delivering
care (eg, locality working)

Strengthen the platform
to maintain a sustainable
organisation

Build strong and
sustainable relationships
with patients,

carers and our local
communities to
enhance health and
wellbeing

Embed new ways of
working across care
boundaries

Strengthen existing and
build new partnerships
that will add value to
patient care

ZeS

As you will have read elsewhere in this
annual review, we are a lead partner in
developing properly integrated care systems
and have identified areas of outstanding
practice in a number of our services. Our
estates and technology plans are progressing
well and, as an anchor institution, our long-
term sustainability is tied to the wellbeing of
the people we serve.

The year ahead, 2020-21, will
be year three for the delivery
of our trust strategy. We
believe we have much to be
very proud of, but know we
have lots more to do on our
Journey to Outstanding.
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Key service changes and

managing risk

Risk governance

The trust board is accountable to NHS
England/Improvement (NHSE/) for the
Trust's performance. The main governance
committees are chaired by a NED and report
directly to the board.

Risk Management

In 2019, as a trust on our journey to
outstanding, we decided to take a fresh look
at risk management to ensure it was further
embedded into all decision making.

To enable us to deliver the ambition set out
in the trust strategy and the NHS Plan,

we decided it was timely to produce a

risk management strategy to support our
commitment to providing high-quality
services.

We recognised that successful risk
management must be forward thinking;
the responsibility of all; comprehensive

and coordinated; and that proactive and
continuous identification and management
of risk is essential to the delivery of high
value healthcare.

In 2019, as a trust on our
journey to outstanding, we
decided to take a fresh look
at risk management to ensure
it was further embedded into
all decision making

The strategy sets out clear goals,
achievements and timescales for
implementation. This enables employees to
work towards the same aims empowering
innovation whilst ensuring patient quality and
care are at the centre of delivery.

Within the strategy we created a vision for
risk management. Risk management will be
everybody’s business - integral to professional
and operational practice at every level and
across organisational/professional boundaries.
We will continually test the boundaries of
practice, while ensuring we operate within
legal and regulatory frameworks to reduce
exposure to risk to ensure patients receive
outstanding care.




Performance summary

Our board and the relevant committees
review a performance scorecard which has
been developed to include a suite of quality
and other indicators at trust and service
level — enabling centralised reporting of
performance and quality data and improved
triangulation of information.

The scorecard is based on the Care Quality
Commission’s five domains of quality: safe,
effective, caring, responsive and welt led.
The selection of indicators is based an NHS
improvement guidance and the trust’s
priorities.

Financial performance

Performance against
quality, workforce and
business targets

In the past year we focused once again

on maintaining good performance. By the
end of 2019-20 we rated ourselves green
for most targets (81.5%), while 18.5% of
outcomes in the Safe, Effective, Responsive
and Well Led domains were rated amber.
Although there is room for improvement, we
were pleased to see further progress on our
Journey to Qutstanding.

We have operated in a constrained financial environment for several years. However,
we continue to demonstrate strong financial performance through tight management
of budgets and expenditure, continual review of our use of resources and seeking new

contracts and services.

In 2019-20:

= we received £77.7 million in income

= we exceeded our planned surplus of £0.333 million with an actual surplus of

£0.338 million

= this enabled the Trust to receive an additional £1.326 million of sustainability and
transformation funding given as a reward to Trusts who meet their NHS budget

targets

* our total surplus for the year, including this reward funding, was £1.664 million

= we incurred £1.841 million of capital expenditure, all on purchased assets, just

below our plan of £1.890 million

= our spending on agency staff was contained within the cap set by NHS
Improvement — despite the need to cover for staff vacancies, we spent £4.069
million on agency staff (7.7% of our overall spending on pay and lower than the

cap of £4.134 million)

* we maintained our low spending on agency staff through a number of measures,
including increasing the number of staff who work for us through bank
arrangements, a positive in terms of quality of care and lower costs

= HRCH achieved the highest rating under NHS Improvement’s ‘use of resources’
framework, which rates NHS Trusts against a range of financial management tests
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Language support

We can help you if English is not your first language. If you would like to receive this report in
a language or format of your choice, please contact the PALS team who will be happy to help:

Free phone: 0B0O0 953 0363
Email: pals.hrch@nhs.net

Post: Patient Experience Team

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust
Thames House

Teddington
TW11 8HU
Arabic Punjabi
G G lai¥? G af Gl 2 Lo i 7 FTA 1yt THT v 591 & 77 A
Lo ok Jpasd i 5 nX Ll Y F e 77 HES 71 R H T
s A 581 e L ff il cyh URITT W WS T T v e
it I PALS s SV Y7 775 7 3 v aad PALS
O M ‘~ - - -
o et A W &7 HiTT 71 FTH HOT T
Baat 5w GEah
Farsi
TR DCHUIY V3 X I PR RO S Somali
G o gl S 8 Sl Anaga waan ku
e TR | b 5 k5 caawinkamaa hadii Ingiriis
3K LGPALS o b il ek owsan aheyn
Lt K8 [ Ll Tt pd Sy gl luugadaadda. Hadii aad ku
Polish dooneysit warqadan yari
luuqad kale ama siyaaba
Mozemy Paristwu poméc, jesli kale ayaad u dooran kartaa
angielski nia jest Paristwa in lagugu habayo fadian
Jjezykiem ojczystym. Jesli chcieliby la’xiriir kooxda ee PALS ee
Panstwo ofrzymac fe ulotke w aad ugu faraxsan in ay ku
wybranym przez Paristwa jezyku cawiyaan,
lub formacie, prosimy
Skontaktowac sie z zespolem
PALS, kibry chelnie Paristwu
pomoze.
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PERFORMANCE

Performance analysis
Clinical Services

Following the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan, we continue to boost our out-of-hospital
care and deliver urgent community response and recovery support in Primary Care Networks
(PCNs).

During 2019-20, working closely with our commissioners, we developed a Care Home Support
Team in Richmond to support the 17 care homes in the borough and help patients who need
health care to stay safely in their homes, so they can avoid having to be admitted to hospital if
they do not need hospital care.

This team has been very successful and has seen a reduction in patients being admitted to
Kingston Hospital.

In Hounslow the Speech and Language Service are running a programme of regular training
for all Hounslow nursing homes. This teaches nursing homes staff how to identify patients who
are having problems eating and drinking. In addition, we have a hotline that offers rapid advice
to nursing homes and GPs if they feel a care home resident needs to go to hospital.

Our Wheelchair Hub provides an exceptional service to 2,297 users of all ages in the borough
of Hounslow and we are extremely proud of its high quality. One area of outstanding practice
is the team's innovative sleep system for children with complex conditions.

This helps prevent secondary complications and deformities, reducing hospital admissions and
improving overall health and quality of life for service users. Parents report the positive impact
this has had on children’s lives, including being more relaxed at school and during personal
care.

One You Hounslow were awarded the Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust Award for Research, Innovation and Quality Improvement for their work with pregnant
women who want to stop smoking. This fantastic team’s work resulted in a 58% increase in
referrals to One You Hounslow and 132% increase in carbon monoxide screenings.

Children’s services

During 2019-20 our paediatric audiology service was awarded the Improving Quality in
Physiological Diagnostic Services (IQIPS) standard for the fourth year in a row. IQIPS is a
professionally led assessment and accreditation scheme that recognises healthcare
organisations which ensure patients receive consistently high-quality services, tests,
examinations and procedures, delivered by competent staff working in safe environments.

HRCH continues to play a vital role in immunising children across several boroughs in south

London and won the contract for the borough of Wandsworth last year. The immunisation
service vaccinated 165,000 children over the last year — 65,000 more than the previous year.
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The team use e-consent forms, which has improved the uptake of vaccinations, as well as
increasing data security, providing greater privacy between parents, young people and health
professionals. We are proud that this won the Public Sector Paperless Award last year.
During the year our children’s services held a successful staff and patient engagement event,
with more than 200 attendees, including families, children and young people. It was a great
way to get invaluable feedback and suggestions to shape the future of services. We received
exceptionally positive feedback from patients and staff, such as:

“l just wanted to say thank you for inviting families along today. Being there in person along
with professionals | felt welcomed, valued and empowered to share our story and our jourmey
so far.”

“‘Having service users attend the session really highlighted for me the good relationship
services have built with patients.”

Adult services

Adult Learning Disabilities

Our Hounslow Adult Learning Disabilities Health Team comprises specialist multidisciplinary
heaith professionals. They support people with learning disabilities who are registered with a
Hounslow GP and live locally, plus their families and carers.

We are taking part in a national programme to stop over-medicating people with learning
disabilities, autism or both (STOMP). A multidisciplinary team of psychiatrists, pharmacists and
positive behaviour support practitioners (PBS) identified 55 patients who met the criteria.

HRCH is a participant in mortality reviews as part of the wider Learning Disabilities Mortality
Review (LeDeR) process. This involves reviewing deaths of peopie with learning disabilities
and learning from them, identifying areas of good practice, areas for improvement and making
changes locally, so future patient care and experiences are improved.

in November 2019, we jointly hosted a learning-from-deaths event for people with learning
disabilities with Hounslow CCG and the London Borough of Hounslow. This service user,
families and carers event shared local learning from the deaths of people with learning
disabilities in Hounslow.

We watched a play produced by the Baked Bean Company, whose actors have learning
disabilities. The light-hearted play conveyed key messages about the review process. We also
heard from a service user with learning disabilities who has a life limiting condition and who
shared thoughts and views about what good care looks like and how things can be improved.

In addition, the team are taking part in national research led by the University of London into
people with learning disabilities who need intensive support.

Community nursing

The community nursing service is made up of matrons and senior district nurses, plus their
teams of community nurses and healthcare assistants.
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They provide community healthcare services for mainly housebound patients who may:
» be acutely unwell

+ have long-term conditions

* need palliative care

e require intensive and technological care

In 2018 the service won the Nursing Times Award for the best place to work for employee
satisfaction, due to their innovative approach to dealing with increasing demands on the
service and continued challenges with workforce. In 2019 we built on this work using
benchmarking and best practice approaches to ensure services are safe all day, every day.

In the 2019 staff survey results, 94% of community nursing respondents said they were able to
do their job to a standard they were personally pleased with, and 97% said that they were
satisfied with the quality of care they give to patients.

During this year the teams have been trialling Silhouette, a 3D camera that is an innovative
way of getting digital images of wounds, including measurements of area, depth and volume
for monitoring progress in wounds healing. Initial patient feedback has been very positive, as
they like to see the progress for themselves.

Urgent care

Teddington Urgent Treatment Centre (UTC) had another busy year, with 47,451 patients
attending with a variety of complaints, including minor illnesses in adults and children, limb
fractures and other minor injuries. The average performance for the UTC against the four-hour
standard was 99.9%, while 97.5% of respondents to its Friends and Family Test (FFT) survey
said they would recommend it.

During the year the UTC was refurbished, funded by the League of Friends of Teddington
Memorial Hospital (TMH). This transformed the reception and waiting area, improving privacy
and dignity for patients and making it a much more attractive area in which to wait. We also
added a children's waiting/play area.

The Urgent Treatment Centre at West Middlesex Hospital also had another busy year, seeing
108,451 patients, with 97.9% seen within four hours. This provided significant support for
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital NHS Foundation Trust's emergency access performance.
In addition, 89% of respondents to the UTC's FFT said they would recommend it.

Our two UTCs have been working more closely throughout the year, with joint meetings and
shared |learning events.

Urgent care in the community: Richmond Rapid Response and Rehabilitation
Team and Hounslow Integrated Community Response Service

These are multidisciplinary and multi-agency teams who work with patients referred to them by
local hospitals and other community services. They aim to help people avoid unnecessary
hospital care and can respond within two hours. Both our response services have been
invoived in work to improve the care and response to patients.

Our Integrated Community Response Service (ICRS} has been piloting work for North West
London community services. One of our clinicians has been working with London Ambulance
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Service clinical hub to help their people make informed decisions about which patients can be
supported in the community rather than being taken to hospital.

ICRS and our Richmond Response and Rehabilitation Team (RRRT) have adopted cutting-
edge technology to help people who have had a fall. They use a piece of equipment called a
Raizer, a mobile lifting chair that brings people up to an almost standing position in a few
minutes when they have fallen in their own homes.

Benefits of this new equipment include:

* no manual handling required, reducing risk of injury to patients and health professionals

= afaster, strong and more stable liting method which is ideal for small and awkward spaces
in people’s homes

In 2020-21 we will be growing these rapid response services and will continue our work with
partners such as the London Ambulance Service, GPs, local authority and voluntary services
to raise awareness of our urgent care services and how they can help patients live safely and
well in their own homes.

Working with partners

In support of the NHS Long-Term Plan, we have been developing integrated multidisciplinary
teams to improve the way primary care, community health and social care professionals work
in partnership with acute hospitals.

We are also members of the North West London and the South West London Health and Care
Partnerships, which have a renewed emphasis on the themes of ‘Start well, Live well, Age
well',

We participated in the first South West London clinical conference, with around 300 NHS
clinicians, social care professionais, voluntary sector and other partners coming together to
help design the clinical vision for South West London. Healthwatch groups were involved in
planning the conference to ensure the patient voice was at the forefront in all of the
discussions.

At borough level, we are taking a lead on community health services, as part of the Hounslow
and Richmond Health and Care provider alliances and are working in partnership with the
Hounslow GP Consortium and the Richmond GP Alliance to redesign services, focused on
coordinated care and improved patient outcomes.

We have been working with Hounslow GPs on several services, including our Primary Care
Patient Coordination Service, which assists Hounslow GP praclices to deliver joined-up,
proactive and planned patient care.

In addition, we continue to work closely with Richmond GPs via our partnership with the
Richmond GP Aliiance, which is called Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership
(RCHiP). One of our joint projects is a high intensity support service (HISS) for people who
have visited A&E 10 or more times but did not need that kind of emergency care.
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This relatively small group of people account for a significant demand on emergency and
urgent care services and were previously not receiving support to break this cycle and improve
their health and quality of life.

Working alongside Kingston and Richmond CCG and Kingston Hospital, we are continuing to
contact patients to organise better support in the community, linking in with services such as
Your Health Care, Richmond Wellbeing Service and Richmond Serenity Integrated Mentoring.

Measuring and monitoring performance

Measuring performance

Measurements of performance may be set nationally, agreed locally with commissioners, or
devised by the trust itself to monitor impravements in care, safety and service delivery.

In addition to producing regular, scheduled performance reports, the trust's performance and
information team produce performance reports on request for managers. The trust also has a
business intelligence portal on the intranet, which allows managers to access useful
performance information.

Monitoring performance

The trust's performance management framework acknowledges the national context as well as
addressing local quality and service priorities. HRCH has a culture of continuous improvement
using the cycle of performance management and uses a system of performance reporting
against agreed measures and quality priorities.

The monthly performance scorecard allows continuous monitoring of specific datasets such as
quality and finance, service specific information and deviation from commissioned targets. This
information is used to monitor compliance with service standards and contract review and is
used to populate national external data sets, as set out below

Planning and setting KPis

P and service objectves
r‘-‘#
&

Communicating .

results and improvi TR o
performance i Performance 2‘“‘;"::"“9 oy
Management -
£ f,_-i‘r
‘L\. o

Using data for reports Collecting data and
and dedision making R — measuring results

The scorecard is reported to the performance executive committee, finance and performance
board sub-committee, and the trust board itself. All reports are monitored and discussed at
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these meetings to identify reasons for any deviation from expected performance, as well as
review of progress with action plans to remedy underperformance.

In addition, sub-committee chairs submit a report to the board to highlight areas of assurance
or where further actions are needed. The trust continues to develop its performance scorecard
report to ensure we are monitoring the things that matter to the delivery of high-quality care
and has been commended by NHS England/Improvement for use of Statistical Process
Control (SPC) charts.

As part of the community benchmarking network we are integrating comparative data into
reports to provide greater assurance and to contextualise the trust performance.

Board sub-committees receive specific reports on subject areas within their terms of reference
e.g. quarterly performance reports covering outcomes against the trust's quality priorities,
patient experience, infection prevention and control, safeguarding together with annual reports
in these areas,

Contractual performance reports are also reviewed internally each month by the performance
executive committee and finance and performance board sub-committee and externally, in
partnership with commissioners. The trust also discusses its quality performance with our local
commissioners.

During 2019-20, the trust reported menthly to NHS England/Improvement, which supports and
holds NHS provider organisations to account for the delivery of consistently safe, high quality,
compassionate care for patients within local health systems that are financially sustainable.
NHS England/Improvement assessed HRCH on its financial outturn performance, inciuding
agency staffing expenditure.

The trust continues to use the national single oversight framework (SOF) as a fundamental
structure that it bases performance reports on. Alongside this, the model hospita! indicators
have expanded to include all areas of finance, workforce, operational delivery and estates.

Finally, the trust also publishes its annual outcomes in respect of its performance on workforce

race equality and against the NHS Equality Delivery System framework. Please see more
detail further on in this report in the ‘Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion’ section.
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Performance 2019-20

The trust reports performance against the five CQC quality domains to ensure a continued
focus on quality. The year-end position against a suite of indicators used to measure
performance is outlined in the following tables. Unless indicated otherwise, the ‘actual’ figure
quoted is the average for the year or the total number in 2019-20. Further detail is provided
under the headings of:

« Clinical Sé.rv-ices.-m(.:ih_aﬁt_y * Workforce « Finance « Information Governance +
Sustainability

SAFE

People are protected from abuse and avoidable harm.
KPI DESCRIPTION

Incidence of Clostridium difficile 2 0 | °
Incidence of MRSA 0 0 P
Never events occurring in month 0 0 Py
[Medication errors causing serious harm 0 0 °®
Inpatient falls per 1,000 occupied bed days 8.6 712 °
Percentage of harm free care (Safety Thermometer) 95% 949, °

EFFECTIVE

People's care, treatment and support achieve good outcomes, promote a good quality of life
and are based on the best available evidence.

KP! DESCRIPTION TARGET |ACTUAL |

Percentage of staff appraised 80% 80.6% @
Percentage of staff — statutory & mandatory training 80% 92.9% o
Clinical supervision — % of staff) 80% 86.6% @
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CARING

Involving people in their care and treating them with compassion, kindness, dignity and

respect.

KP| DESCRIPTION |TARGET[ACTUAL |
Trust composite FFT — % recommend 90% 95%
Trust composite FFT — % not recommend 10% 1.4%
Staff FFT — % recommend the trust as a place to receive care and . .
treatment (average at year end) 67% 86.4%
Staff FFT — % not recommend the trust as a place to receive care

33% 3.66%
and treatment (average at year end)
Patient Survey — % patients who felt their privacy and dignity were . .
respected 95% 97.1%
{Patient Survey — % of patients who felt they received their care in a . .
way that was right for them 95% 96.9%

RESPONSIVE

Organlsmg services so that they are tallored to people s needs
KPIDESCRIPTION

]TARGETlACTUAL |

&E maximum waltlng tlme offour hours from arnvalto admlssmnl . .
ransfer/ discharge 95% 98.8%
RTT waiting times for non-admitted pathways: percentage within
18 weeks 92% 99.9%
RTT waiting times incomplete pathways: percentage within 18
k‘,eeks 92% | 100%
Diagnostic waiting times: patients waiting over 6 weeks for a
. . 1% 0.3%
diagnostic test
Percentage of Delayed Transfers of care 7.5% 6.9%
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WELL LED

Leadership, management and governance of the organisation to assure the delivery of high-
quality person-centred care, support learning and innovation, and promote an open and fair
culture.

KPi DESCRIPTION TARGET |ACTUAL
Inpatient Friends & Family Test (FFT) response rate 30% 84% 9
A&E FFT (Teddington urgent treatment centre and Hounslow

urgent treatment centre response rate) 5% 9.3% ®
Staff FFT — % recommend the trust as a place to work (year-end) 61% 74% ®
[Staff sickness 3.2% 3.9% ®
[Staff turnover 16% 16.3% e
\Vacancy rate 10% 9.9% ©
Temporary costs and overtime as a percentage of total pay bill

(reported a month in arrears) 20% 13.2% ©
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Quality

Our Journey to Outstanding (J20) quality improvement programme is our framework for QI
(quality improvement) and assurance of compliance with CQC standards. The accountable
officer for quality and the CQC in 2019-20 was Donna Lamb, director of nursing and non-
medical professionals.

Registration with the Care Quality Commission 2019-20

We are registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without any conditions and were
not required to participate in any special reviews or investigations in 2019-20. The CQC last
inspected Hounslow and Richmond Community NHS Trust in 2018.

They inspected adult community services, end of life care and urgent care services. The trust
was rated as ‘Good’ in all services and domains of quality, safe, effective, caring, responsive
and well led. Subsequently, the trust completed its action plan to address areas for
improvement suggested by the CQC.

We are anticipating an inspection during 2020-21 and submitted our Provider Information
Request in March 2020.

CareQuality Last rated
Commission 19 October 2018

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust

Overall
rating

Effectve Canng Well led Overall

Sale -
Communy and of bfe
care Chuet Camnl
Pedirins ﬂ n - n - n
npatient services [932% | Lawd
Curnmunity hedith
sernces for adults
Urgent care saivicos

|

Lommurity hea'th
sennces for chetdren
young peaple and Familma

Annual Report 2019-20 page 10 of 62



Overarching Journey to Outstanding focus for 2019-20

We launched our quality and clinical strategy 2019-23, which strengthens our mission to
provide outstanding care and services that we and our families would want to use. The
purpose of the strategy is to provide a clear framework for the delivery of outstanding services
to our patients and service users, their families and carers.

Our trust strategy says that, in five years from now, we will be at the forefront of improving the
health and wellbeing of local people. Our patients and service users will be able to say they
have had outstanding experiences and we will be able to demonstrate that care is consistently
safe and effective.

Our quality and clinical strategy supports our belief that being ‘outstanding’ comes from a
consistent approach to, and demonstrable evidence of:

s quality improvement
= patient and public engagement/co-production
» astrong safety culture

Our quality priorities align with annual deliverables from our quality and clinical strategy based
on:

« patient safety — building a strong safety culture
» clinical effectiveness — embedding quality improvement
= patient experience — strengthening patient and public engagement and co-production

Patient safety Clinical effectiveness Patient experience

Build on our culture of keeping | For staff to be trained and Fully develop an approach that
people safe and develop a engaged in/using quality puts people at the heart of
safety culture which places a improvement methodology in  care to improve service quality,
high level of importance on the our journey of continucus enaaging in continuing service
management of safety, improvement. delivery, making changes to
including beliefs, values and services or redesigning care
attitudes. pathways.
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Quality priorities

We identify three quality priorities each year in the domains of patient safety, patient
experience and clinical effectiveness. We also set several other priorities to improve quality of
care. However, the three below are the priorities against which we report progress in our
annual Quality Account.

1. Improving patient safety

» Ensuring staff receive feedback and » Demonstrate a trend of increasing
learning is shared widely incident reporting and decreasing

» Building on our culture of being open and levels of harm from incidents
honest when things go wrong * Provide a flexible and open approach

s Ensuring staff have access to and feel to learning across the trust
confident to raise concerns » Ensure patients and their families are

» Build consideration of human factors into involved in the terms of reference in the
how we investigate incidents. investigation of incidents

« Develop learning and training from
serious incidents and the role of human
factors.

2. Improving clinical effectiveness

Develop and implement a training

Ensure there is a flexible and responsive

training programme, appropriate to all programme which delivers an

levels of staff appropriate level of training for ali staff
* Provide quality improvement support on quality improvement

through a netwark of champions and * Develop the internal quality

resources improvement support including web-
» Be able to evidence quality improvement based tools

activity across the trust from a central hub e Develop a central hub for registration of
« Demonstrate improved outcomes and quality improvement projects and

sustainability of improvement projects outcomes

» Implement governance structure around
quality improvement
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3. Improving patient experience

» Embedding and further developing s Share learning from three Always
Always Events, sharing learning from Events across the trust
what we've done well » Develop a shared programme of public
» Adopting ‘What matters to you' as the engagement with GP Consortium
HRCH way « Implement systems to collect and
» Developing an integrated model of public monitor protected characteristics of
engagement with primary care and other people we engage with
stakeholders e Involve patients and carers in co-design
» Ensure we are inclusive in our approach of any service changes
to engagement. s Perform equality impact assessment on

all service changes

The figures below outline the important achievements made
by the year end for 2019-20

0 medication errors causing serious harm
0 never events
94% of patients received harm-free care

Number of patients who fell in our inpatient unit: 7.12 falls per 1,000 bed
days averaged across the year

95% of patients on average reported they would recommend our services to
their friends and family

97.1% of patients, on average reported their privacy and dignity were respected

Monitoring quality performance

As reported elsewhere in this report, we review all the information available to us about quality
of care in the services we provide. We produce a wide range of reports for internal and
external monitoring and performance management each month, as well as action plans for
rectifying any issues. For further details of improvements in 2019-20, see our quality account
will be available online at: www.hrch.nhs.uk/guality from mid-December 2020.

Patient feedback
We have an online system which we use to collect patient feedback, clinical audits and other

surveys. Feedback from patients is collected using various methods such as iPads, kiosks,
comment cards, electronic links and our website.

We also use paper surveys when electronic means are not appropriate and upload results to

the system. Last year, 25,698 people told us about their care and treatment as compared to
21,965 in 2018-19.
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As part of this year's patient feedback:

o
97. 1 A) of patients said they were treated with respect and in dignified
ways

96% of patients said they felt they had been listened to

Friends and Family Test (FFT)

Our patients are positive about our services and would recommend our services to their
friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment.

In 2019-20, 95% of our patients said they would recommend our services to their friends and
family compared to 95% nationally. We also have a children’s comment card, designed with
their input to ensure we are hearing their voice. In 2019-20, 94% of respondents
recommended the children's services they used.

Listening to what patients tell us

Compliments

The vast majority of patients appreciate the kindness, care and expertise of our colleagues
and share their appreciation with us. We record and report all compliments and are pleased to
report we received 434 formal compliments in 2019-20 compared to 393 in 2018-19.

These numbers do not capture the many lovely expressions of thanks that patients regularly
share with our teams. We are always grateful when patients and families take the time to tell
us how much they appreciate our care, as we want to provide the kind of care we would want
our families to receive.

The word clouds below capture what people say about our services and our colleagues in
feedback that we captured on our electronic patient feedback system in 2019-20.

Service Staff
. \
treatm ositive nde\"‘é\a\e
bR WOZpPExcellent
th 8?18 ug h caoi;r:*nufg;tgg_l.e
we| ' efficient thanks&MIC appy
chec& ‘QI’ [[" ctaft we HSa{,sgﬁgg? oly
natd‘;‘e&a re ervice brillia%%%uwlé&l\%g
n
atteené‘%g\ngleooked ?n:\c’%ggged
C i :
professional piRJigipginendly
Complaints

In 2019-20, we had 80 formal complaints that required detailed investigation and 187
enhanced PALS enquiries that were resolved at a local level, which is a total of 267. In 2018-
19 we had 67 formal complaints and 158 enhanced PALS enquiries, which is a total of 225.
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This suggests complainants want their complaints to be handled as quickly as possible but still
investigated properly. We respond in the way that is right for each complainant, which means
more complaints receive an immediate response from the service manager or lead clinician to
resolve the issue.

The top three themes of complaint are the same as those reported in 2018-19. Complaints
about ‘treatment/ability’ and diagnosis (i.e. around provision of safe and high-quality care)
together represent 46% of our total complaints for the year, with 'staff attitude’ representing 25
% of the total.

Last year 81% of all formal complaints were responded to within 25 working days. This
compares with 100% in the previous year.

Patient survey

We undertake an annual postal survey of 1,000 patients, focusing on a specific service to
provide a snapshot of patient satisfaction. The 2019-20 survey was of musculoskeletal
services in Hounslow and Richmond and we will report the leaming from the feedback once
the survey responses have been analysed.

Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion

Equality and diversity is overseen by the trust's Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Committee
chaired by the Director of Workforce, with a Non-Executive Director and patient executive
lead. Assurance is reported via the trust's Executive Committee.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust presents its Equality Report every
year, in line with specific duties for publicly funded bodies in the Equality Act (2010). We are
strongly committed to providing personal, fair and diverse services to the people we serve and
employ for three key reasons.

First, this aligns with our core equality aims to be the local community healthcare provider and
employer of choice. Secondly, we believe fundamentally in the business case for valuing
diversity and inclusion, supported by underpinning evidence, that demonstrates that more
diverse organisations provide higher quality care. Thirdly, this is the right thing to do from a
moral and ethical perspective to advance fairness for our patients and staff and to eliminate
discrimination.

QOur ambition remains to improve the health outcomes, access and experience of all our
patients, carers, visitors, volunteers and employees. During the past year, we focused on:

Working with patients and service users

+ With our new Engagement Champions, patients and carers, we are developing an Always
Event for the community nursing service

« The Wheelchair Hub organised a children's’ new wheelchair skills workshop in partnership
with the Go Kids Go charity during the May half-term — the workshop aimed to promote
independence and safety by developing children’s manual wheelchair skills

» A student with autism completed work experience with our physiotherapy department in O
Block at West Middlesex Hospital — the teacher thanked the service and said the student
had a “fantastic week with an amazing team”
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Working with the local community

Let's Talk Diabetes event — a day of professional education for staff and awareness-raising
for members of the public

Extra Care housing scheme training (managed assisted living) provided for staff in:
continence care and management

Coordinate My Care

diabetes awareness and care

dietetics awareness

dysphagia awareness

Feltham District Nursing Team

One You Hounslow

podiatry awareness

pressure area care and management

role of the ICRS and CRS services

o safeguarding adults & Mental Capacity Act Workshop

A Parkinson’s patient and public involvement event got feedback to create an updated
service

Wheelchair service held an open day in November 2019 to meet the team, have a guided
tour and a talk from GRX Life, who provide specialist knowledge and advice to active
wheelchair users

A case study of the end-of-life-care experience and an Always Event was presented to a
Cancer Collaborative, with a focus on sustainability, spread and influencing executive
leaders — teams and patient reps from across the country were present

Wide public consultation, using a range of methods, including social media, on our 2019-
20 quality priorities

continuing representation from Healthwatch on the trust board and quality governance
committee

000000 O0CO0OO0

Valuing our people

at least two celebrating diversity events each year for employees, which receive 100%
positive feedback

delivering and embedding unconscious bias training as a core part of our Management
Essentials training programme

all executive directors attend corporate induction every month and tell new colleagues that
we want to hear from them, that they are leaders at all levels and that we want them to
bring their authentic selves to work, develop their talents and be the best that they can be
we also invite all new staff to settling-in meetings six weeks after they join us and receive
positive feedback about the face-to-face contact they have with executive directors at
induction and at the settling-in meetings

working to ensure that all our information, services and buildings are accessible for all staff
— we published detailed accessibility information about our sites on the AccessAble
website, while addressing any accessibility issues for our colleagues

showing zero tolerance towards bullying, harassment, inappropriate language and
behaviour, and encouraging the reporting of all cases of discrimination

all staff leading by example and embodying our Vision and Values

board accountability, which is well established, with the director of workforce as lead
executive for workforce and director of nursing as lead executive for patients and the
public, along with a named non-executive director (NED) for equality and diversity
continuing to have one of the more diverse NHS boards in London and England

improving employees’ health and wellbeing with a range of physical activities and
mindfulness sessions
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= training and having mental health first aiders across each HRCH site

= running two administration staff away days in response to the 2018 staff survey and
subsequent focus groups, which highlighted a need for networking and career
development opportunities, particularly among staff with BAME backgrounds

However, we know we can do more to build diversity into high-quality services and meet the
health needs of our diverse population. We will, therefore, use our move to working in
Networks to better understand the needs of local people and plan how we can work with our
partners in primary care and the local authority to have a real impact on the health of black
and minority ethnic communities and people from diverse backgrounds more generally.

Our latest public sector equality duty annual report shows we have a diverse and
representative workforce — more information is available on our website, including patient
access information:

http://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/equality-and-diversity/

The 2019 national WRES (workforce race equality standard) lists HRCH in the top performing
trusts for two indicators: the board diversity and providing equal opportunities to our staff.

Mortality review process

NHS England/Improvement's national guidance on learning from deaths, published in March
2017, states ‘community trusts should ensure their governance arrangements and processes
include, facilitate and give due focus to the review, investigation and reporting of deaths,
including those deaths that are determined maore likely than not to have resulted from
problems in care. Trusts should also ensure that they share and act upon any learning derived
from these processes.

The trust reports separately if any adults die in the Teddington Memorial Hospital inpatient unit
or the community and records deaths of any adults with learning disabilities through the
Learning Disability Mortality Review Programme (LeDeR) process, managed by Hounslow
CCG and Richmond CCG.

Adult Services

» All deaths of patients in our inpatient care or who have been discharged within 30 days are
screened once the service becomes aware of the death

» All deaths occurring while services were being provided in the carrying on of a regulated
activity or have, or may have, resulted from the carrying on of a regulated activity (eg,
wrong dose of medication) are screened once the service becomes aware of the death
(reportable to the CQC)

* |n addition to the mandatory list above, the trust takes a measured approach to identifying
other groups for review (frontline clinicians and managers identify any case that might
warrant review) and from which learning would be beneficial

Cases on the adult caseload are reviewed if:

e there is a concern that the management of care fell short of expected clinical practice
» the GP, pharmacist or any other relevant health professional requests a review

« patients’ families or friends raise issues or concerns

+ individual members of a clinical team wish for a review to take place
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« the trust decides it will record the total number of deaths on a service caseload, once we
are informed of the death — these deaths may be entirely unrelated to our services, for
example, if someone dies in a road traffic accident, or one of our patients with a leg ulcer
then has an unrelated stroke

In the past year only one death met the criteria for review at the Teddington Memaorial Hospital
inpatient unit. More information is available on our website:
http://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/publications-declarations/

Our people

The NHS People Plan aims to make the NHS the best place fo work, with compassionate and
inclusive leadership and the delivery of 21st century care. Our people are fundamental to our
success in delivering high-quality patient care.

We are immensely proud of our people, the care we deliver and the fact that more than 95% of
our patients consistently say they would recommend our services. We employ a skilled
workforce of more than 1,100 people. We support them in aiming to be the best they can be,
across clinical and non-clinical services, and in contributing to the delivery of high-quality,
patient-centred care.

The people we employ reflect the diverse backgrounds of the communities we serve. Qur trust
board is one of the most diverse boards in the country. We are proud to have diverse staff and
board members to serve and engage with our diverse population.

Percentage of employees, leaders and board members with BME
backgrounds:

40.8% of employees — up 1.9%

31.4% of leaders up to Band 8C

42.9% of executive directors

40% of board members — up 4.3%

Gender
85.1% of employees are female
14.9% are male

Disability
12% of staff survey responders have declared a disability — down 1.2%

Our approach to developing our workforce is set out in our Workforce Strategy and the
supplementary Learning, Development & OD Strategy, which were co-developed with staff.
We have already made progress on our vision of making HRCH a great place to work, but we
need to continually improve our services and workforce, helped by our quality improvement
(QI) approach. This is vital as people and their health and social care needs change, along
with their expectations.
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The NHS is facing another period of change, with an even greater focus on improving the way
we run our services to be as efficient as possible. Our colleagues have been rising to the
challenge by working in collaboration with health and social care partners on service redesign
to meet the changing needs of patients in north west and south west London.

Every single member of our staff is fundamental to our mission to provide care and services
that we and our families would want to use. We are committed to constantly improving HRCH
as a great place to work. We have also taken steps to ensure we have an inclusive workforce
that feels listened to and is engaged.

One of the key parts of our strategy has been to work in a more integrated way with local GPs
in Hounslow and Richmond to design more seamless services, utilising the skills of all our
workforces via Primary Care Networks (PCNs) in each borough.

In Hounslow we formalised our partnership with the GP Consortium and GP Network Directors
with a memorandum of understanding {MoU) and network agreements. Together we
established joint PCN delivery resource teams, employed by us but working for the PCNs,
which include primary care support, joint clinical transformation project leads, pharmacists and
first contact physiotherapists. We also secured funding for delivery resource teams and
infrastructure support.

Our partnership working via the Hounslow Working Together alliance was commended by the
North West London sector. Joint working is well established between HRCH and PCN clinical
directors, through strong relationships and the joint resources.

In Richmond, we have maintained our joint venture partnership with Richmond GP Alliance
(RGPA) and Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership (RCHiP) provides support to
PCNs and integrated primary and community services.

We have an established borough-wide partnership group and forum and held two workshops
in late 2019 with new PCN clinical directors, RGPA board members, HRCH executives and
clinical service leads, and the Local Pharmaceutical Committee.

This was to build relationships and jointly identify priority areas for action acraoss the six PCNs.
Lunch-and-learn and breakfast drop-in sessions in early 2019 provided opportunities for
frontline staff to learn more about working in PCNs.

Workforce performance

Over the course of 2019-20 the trust made significant improvements as a result of senior-level
focus on this key priority area.

Statutory & mandatory training 92.9%
Vacancy rate 9.9%

Staff turnover 16.3%

Staff sickness rates 3.9%

Staff appraisals 90.6%
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Some of this year’s highlights include:

+ Trust and staff awards: We continue to invest in our much-valued staff annual and
champion awards

= Equality, diversity and inclusion: Our Celebrating Diversity events continue to be
popular and aim to celebrate and raise awareness of our employees’ range of
backgrounds and experiences and the positive impact this can have on the way we care
for patients

* Apprenticeships: we continued to promote apprenticeships as a gateway to careers in the
NHS, including more non-clinical apprentices, as well as promoting new Nursing Associate
apprentice roles

* e-Rostering ~ Our rostering system is embedded throughout the trust and enables us to
reduce unfilled shifts and use our bank more for temporary cover, cutting down on agency
costs

* Agile working — we reviewed all our estate to ensure it is fit for purpose and have
facilitated more agile working for staff by creating hot desks at all of the sites and ensuring
that all relevant staff have access to technology that aids remote working

Wellbeing matters

In 2019-20, 75% of employees said our trust takes positive action on health and wellbeing and
we continue to work on making our trust a great place to work. We always look for
opportunities to improve employees' wellbeing and time at work.

This year our wellbeing priorities continue to reflect feedback from all forms of our staff
engagement, as well as CCG contract requirements -re mental health and wellbeing.
Wellbeing advice and support are regularly promoted in our Wellbeing Newsletters.

We continue to provide our exercise and wellbeing classes to meet the needs of our different
staff groups. There are now 13 classes across 8 different sites before and after work (up from
11 the previous year).

In addition, our specialist diabetes team introduced a new weight management support
programme to help employees lose weight on a low carb diet. This can reduce the risk of
developing type 2 diabetes. For people with diabetes, this may improve glucose levels or even
put diabetes into remission.

Our staff health and wellbeing group are active and lead on improving wellbeing in their areas.
Highlights from this year include hosting a programme of wellbeing events across the trust,
including health checks, Zumba taster sessions, team mindfuiness sessions, nutrition and
weight management advice, and free stop-smoking support.

We are aware of pressures on our employees and always look for new ways to reduce
workplace stress. This year, we signed up to a London Workforce collaborative focusing on
developing good practice for promoting staff wellbeing and organisational resilience and
making a connection about persuading senior leaders on the importance of prioritising staff
wellbeing.

The collaborative will be looking at ways to address the impact of stress on the workforce and
explore how organisations can maintain a culture and operate in such a way that the need for
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personal resilience is minimised as much as possible and increased focus is given to systemic
resilience rather than individual resilience.

To ensure we have an environment in which mental health can be openly discussed, we
trained 23 Mental Health First Aiders and advertised who they are and where they are based.
They act as first point of contact and reassurance for anyone experiencing mental health issue
or emotional distress.

In partnership with Richmond Mind, they organised teatime and lunch breaks across our sites
for Time to Talk Day in February 2020. One of the Mental Health First Aiders presented at our
Celebrating Diversity Event the following month to create more awareness of their roles and
the support they provide.

We also started our Schwartz Rounds, regular peer support sessions for employees to discuss
the emotional and social aspects of providing care and support.

We will continue to prioritise a positive culture in which mental health and work pressures can
be openly discussed and supported.

Flu vaccinations for patient-facing employees

We continued to use electronic forms for employees to give their consent to having the flu
vaccine and were pleased that about 85% of patient-facing were vaccinated — only slightly
down from 86% in 2018-19.

Valuing and recognising our colleagues

About 200 employees gathered at Twickenham Stoop in November 2019 for our annual staff
awards ceremony. They shared in the successes of colleagues who received awards for their
dedication, professionalism and compassion.

We are incredibly proud of our outstanding colleagues and the ceremany honoured their many
achievements. We received about 117 nominations for colleagues who demonstrate our trust
values in their work each day.

We also regularly recognise and reward the hard work and accomplishments of people who go
the extra mile for local patients through our quarterly HRCH Champion Awards pragramme,
with individual awards for caring, respect and rising star, plus a team award for communication
and innovation.

NHS Staff Survey 2019

Each year we take part in the annual national NHS Staff Survey to receive feedback from staff
on their experience of working here, to monitor trends and measure the impact of changes we
have made in respanse to feedback. The results from the staff survey are incredibly important
to us, as we get to hear what peaple really think about working here.

Our staff survey results placed us in the top three community trusts in the country for quality

and safety, and workforce stability, according to the analyst company Listening into Action. Its
analysis of the 2019 staff survey results concluded that quality and safety of patient care
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depends on the wellbeing, morale and sustainability of frontline staff members. We are very
proud of this result.

We were pleased that 745 colleagues participated in the survey, which is 67.1% of our
workforce. This is a brilliant response and means we have some rich, valid data to show us
where we can make improvements.

We came top out of all community trusts in the country in 15 questions, including:

» Dbeing able to do my job to a standard | am personally pleased with (84.9%)

e having adequate materials, supplies and equipment to do my work (72%)

e relationships at work are not strained (60%)

» ability to deliver care | aspire to (78.2%)

» people agreeing the trust encourages people to report errors, near misses and incidents
(95.3%)

¢ people agreeing their department or directorate collects patients’ and service users’
feedback (97.6%)

Overall, we have seen some great results — even better than 2018 — and some are significant
increases of 3% or 5%. Most importantly, the percentage of colleagues recommending HRCH
as a place to work has remained the same as last year at 70.2% — almost 4% better than the
national average of 66.3%.

Out of 90 questions, 48 responses improved since 2018, including positive views of:
e jobs and teamwork

» quality

» support from immediate managers

¢ health and wellbeing

« efficacy of appraisals

We also saw improvements among some staffing groups. For example, administration and
clerical colleagues rated us more highly in 54 questions than in the previous national survey.
In addition, almost 8 out of 10 of colleagues would recommend the trust as a place to receive
treatment (78.9%).

While most of our latest results are overwhelmingly positive, with year-on-year improvement,
we still have some areas for improvement, including.

* level of pay and meeting conflicting demands
« communication between senior management and staff
» reporting of physical violence

Our trust board will use the feedback to support improvements based on key themes or areas
that need more focused efforts from the trust. In addition, we have asked all teams to suggest
at least one thing they can do themselves to make a difference to their teams and our patients.

Staff Friends and Family Test

In addition to the annual NHS Staff Survey, our people feedback their views via a quarterly
Staff Friends and Family Test survey. In 2019-20, for the third year running, 90% of colleagues
told us they would recommend HRCH to friends and family as a place to receive care or
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treatment. Furthermore, 74% of our employees would recommend HRCH as a place to work
(3% higher than the previous year).

People development

Our learning, development and organisational development strategy was created to ensure
our people get the right support to develop their knowledge, skills and talent. We are
committed to training, learning and development for all our people and offer a wide range of
opportunities and courses to support a culture of continued improvement and learning.

Through creating a conducive learning environment in which employees can challenge and
reflect on their practices, we believe we can enable our staff to be the best they can be.

In 2019-20 we;

s continued to promote apprenticeships in the trust, offering more clinical apprenticeship
opportunities — we have recruited 3 nursing associate apprentices and now have 24
apprentices across the trust

« procured training to develop a cohort of 24 accredited coaches to build a coaching culture
at HRCH

« procured a coaching and mentoring system to enable staff to access coaching, mentoring
and an array of resources to support their development and increase performance

e supported our admin workforce by organising 2 administration engagement and
development away days, including CV writing workshops, interviewing skills and
networking opportunities

» evaluated and enhanced our in-house Management Essentials programme to include
coaching and mentoring support and reflective study, with 66 managers enrolled

= finalised our executive development programme

s continued to develop and support teams and performance through organisational

development interventions such as team coaching, team building activities and training and

education

¢ continued to improve clinical skills development, supporting colleagues at university with
funding from Health Education England — supplemented by directly-funded development
sessions for people applying through the training panel

Statutory and mandatory training

In 2029-20, 92.9% of colleagues completed their statutory and mandatory training, exceeding
our target of 90%. Our training programme promotes the safety and wellbeing of all our people
and patients. It includes national core skills which have a direct impact on patient safety, such
as information governance, safeguarding adults and children, and resuscitation.
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Finance and information

in 2019-20:

Accounts payable — position as at 31 March 2020

 Better Payment Policy Compliance {BPPC) — cur.nu.lative ]

we received £77.7 million in income

we exceeded our planned surplus of £0.333 millien with an actual surplus of £0.338 million
this enabled the trust to receive an additional £1.326 million of sustainability and
transformation funding given as a reward to trusts who meet their NHS budget targets

our total surplus for the year, including this reward funding, was £1.664 million

we incurred £1.841 million of capital expenditure, all on purchased assets, just below our
plan of £1.890 million

our spending on agency staff was contained within the cap set by NHS
England/Improvement — despite the need to cover for staff vacancies, we spent £4.069
million on agency staff (7.7% of our overall spending on pay and lower than the cap of
£4.134 million)

we maintained our low spending on agency staff through a number of measures, including
increasing the number of staff who work for us through bank arrangements, a positive in
terms of quality of care and lower costs

HRCH achieved the highest rating under NHS England/Improvement’s 'use of resources’
framework, which rates NHS Trusts against a range of financial management tests

S———————— ———

By number 93% 95.2%

By Value 98% 94.8%

Debtors due mare than 90 days are £1,988k

Despite significant pressure on staffing, we maintained low spending on agency staff and
remained within pay rate caps, except for small numbers of specialist staff. The agency
spend cap in 2019-20 was £4,134,000. We spent £4,069,524, which was 98% of the cap
on agency spending and 7.7% of our overall pay bill

Cash at 31 March was £24,460,000 against a target of £21,643,000 - cash balances were
above plan, mainly as a consequence of additional PSF monies paid in year but relating to
the 2018-19 outturn

Temporary Staff Spend
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Information governance and cyber security

Information governance supports our statutory duty to safeguard patients’ information and
keep it confidential but available. It assures us and patients that personal information is dealt
with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively.

NHS Digital's annual Data Security and Protection Toolkit audit helps us assess ourselves
against current data protection legislation and related regulations, giving either a pass or fail
mark.

We submitted a fully compliant assessment in March 2020. This was achieved through a
variety of measures and actions, including:

« continued review of personal data to ensure the trust operates in line with General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR) and follows a data-protection-by-design approach

» review of access to information processes, to ensure requests are answered within the
legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large fines from the ICO

« continuing review and revision of the trust privacy notice

« completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects, services,
systems and applications which involve the use of personal data

« continuing review of data flow in and out of the organisation, to ensure accountability

« self-referring data incidents to the ICO for full transparency

» an audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital toolkit
by our external auditors

« board-level cyber security training with GCHQ

* a business continuity tabletop exercise

« continuing review of policies and staff guidance

* helping colleagues to complete information governance and security e-learning training

« attending team meetings to ensure data protection and security is a key element of all work
and staff take responsibility for data in their teams

By submitting a fully compliant Data Security and Protection Toolkit we are working towards
Cyber Essentials Plus accreditation.

Environmental sustainability

We operate within the guidelines of the sustainable development strategy for the health and
social care system 2014-2020. In 2019-20 we invested in an upgraded building management
system (BMS) at Teddington Memorial Hospital. This is a computerised way of controlling and
managing various electrical and mechanical components, helping us to make our plant more
efficient.

In addition, we replaced aging lighting systems with new LED alternatives. We also carried out
a survey on low-use areas, with a plan to change over to motion-detected lighting controls.
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Staff engagement

This year the HRCH board signed up to the Single-use Plastics Reduction Pledge, which has
milestones that we should meet, the first by April 2020. We no longer buy single-use plastic
stirrers and straws, except when someone has a specific need. That was our first milestone.

We are working towards our next target, no longer buying single-use plastic cutlery, plates or
cups made of expanded polystyrene or oxo-degradable plastics. We are removing plastic
plates and single-use cups from our wards, staff rooms and meeting rooms. We are also
looking at installing dishwashers so we can stop using single-use cutlery.

Whenever possible, we consult colleagues and ask for their involvement in new and innovative
ideas and hold sustainability meetings with clinical teams to gain ideas.

For example, as part of our efforts to improve sustainability and ensure staff stay hydrated at
work, we gave all our employees metal water bottles for the 2020 new year. The move was
inspired by a seven-year-old schoolboy from Bursted Wood Primary School in Bexleyheath,
after we signed up to the plastic reduction pledge.

The little boy was horrified that some of our school-age immunisation team were drinking from
disposable plastic water bottles. When one of our colleagues noticed the boy's reaction, she
immediately asked the trust to buy multi-use water bottles for all employees, so they would no
longer have to use plastic ones.

Actions to encourage environmental sustainability

» We have a zero waste-to-landfill policy

» All domestic waste is burned to generate energy, enabling zero landfill; this energy is
distributed to the National Grid

« Public transport usage and agile working is encouraged, with agile working locations
added to the trust’s property portfolio

« Continuous auditing and the introduction of ISO9001 processes, ensuring legal compliance
and capturing any missed carbon and/or financial saving opportunities

« Up-to-date reporting identifies trends in utility consumption and waste production and
enables the estates team to take action to resolve issues

Utilities

Electricity is hourly metered, so we can see daily peaks and troughs, enabling closer usage
management. With our efficient gas boilers and new building management system we
anticipate our plant will allow us to maintain consistent gas usage, which will put less strain on
the main system.

Water consumption has been tightly controlled, reducing stored water on site, while creating a
more reliable water system of reducing leaks and water wastage.

Waste

We recycle just over 68% of non-clinical waste, nearly 23% higher than the UK national
average of 45.2%.
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Transport

Through the rationalisation of our estate, we have created many agile working spaces,
reducing the need for colleagues to travel around our main boroughs. We encourage walking,
cycling and public transport whenever possible.

We continued our partnership with AccessAble, which provides online information to help
colleagues and patients with and without accessibility issues to plan their travel, particularly by
public transport to all our sites. This partnership has been well received and helped us come
1% among community trusts in the 2012 PLACE inspection in the disability category.

Modern Slavery Act (2015)

In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the trust has made a statement on its
website regarding the steps taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking
place in any part of its own business or any of its supply chains: http:/Amww.hrch.nhs. uk/about-
us/publications-declarations/(Policies for public domain).

/2m C‘_),\?L\L

Chief Executive 24 June 2020
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SECTION 2 - ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Corporate governance report

a. Directors’ report

Board of Directors

ACCOUNTABILITY

The trust board of directors has overall responsibility for setting the corporate and clinical
strategy of the trust, as well as overseeing performance, including finance.

The board meets in public 6 times per year to discuss performance across the trust, current
and future challenges, and corporate and clinical strategy. When discussing issues of a
confidential nature the trust board resolve to meet in private in accordance with the Public

Bodies Act 1960.

Details of public board meetings and papers are available on the trust website Board meetings
: Hounslow & Richmond Community Healthcare

Changes to the trust board

During 2019/20 the following changes took place to the membership of the trust board:
Ginny Colwell was appointed on 1 October 2019 to serve as a Non-Executive member of the
trust Board for a fixed term until 30 September 2022.

Sian Bates was appointed on 1 February to serve as the chairman for a fixed term until 31

August 2021.

Judith Rutherford and Bindesh Shah both had their Terms of Office renewed until 31 March

2021 and 27 September 2021 respectively.

Board members

The full {ist of members of the trust board who served in 2019/20, is as follows

Chairman

Sian Bates (from 1 February 2020)
Judith Rutherford, interim (January 2020)
Stephen Swords (to 31 December 2019)

Non-Executive Directors
Judith Rutherford

Bindesh Shah

Joanne Hay

Phil Hall

Ginny Colwell

Executive Directors

Patricia Wright, Chief Executive
Monique Carayol, Director of Strategy &
Transformation*

David Hawkins, Director of Finance &
Corporate Services

Stephen Hall, Director of Clinical
Services®, Richmond and South West
London (SWL)

Alison Heeralall, Director of Workforce &
Communications*

Donna Lamb, Director of Nursing & Non-
Medical Professionals

Dr John Omany, Medical Director

Anne Stratton, Director of Clinical
Services, Hounslow and North West
London (NWL)*

*Non-voting Directors, * Voting Directors
who share a single vote
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Observers {non-voting):

The following are also able to attend board
meetings in a non-voting capacity, to
represent the community's views:

John Marshall - Healthwatch Hounslow
Paul Pegden Smith - Healthwatch
Richmond

The table below details board members’ position at 31 March 2020 on the Sub-Committees of the trust
board. Profiles of trust board members are available at https:/f/www.brch.nhs.uk/about-usftrust-board-

and-leadership

Non-Executive Board Members Committee membership (*chair)
Stephen Swords (to 31 December Trust Board *
2019) Charitable Funds*

Quality Governance
Nominations and Remuneration*
Workforce and Education

Sian Bates (from 1 February Trust Board*

2020) Nominations and Remuneration*

Judith Rutherford — interim Chair  Trust Board*

January 2020 Audit and Risk (no meeting when
chair)

Nominations and Remuneration
Richmond Community Healthcare
in Partnership Committee
(RCHIP)**
Bindesh Shah Trust Board
Audit and Risk
Finance and Performance*
Nominations and Remuneration
Joanne Hay Trust Board
Finance and Performance
Nominations and Remuneration
Workforce and Education*
Phil Hall Trust Board
Audit and Risk*
Finance and Performance++
Quality Governance +
Nominations and Remuneration
Ginny Colwell Trust Board
Quality Governance” (from 1 October, member all
year)
Nominations and Remuneration
Workforce and Education
Ajay Metha (until 30 September Trust Board
2019) Charitable Funds
Quality Governance*
Nominations and Remuneration
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+ from 1 October 2019

++ until 30 September 2019

** RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the RGPA to oversee progress with delivery of the OQutcome-
Based Commissioning contract. RCHIP is a committee of both the trust's and RGPA's Boards.

Executive Board Members Committee membership (*chair)
Patricia Wright Trust Board

RCHIP

Attends all committees at least
once a year

Part Il risk session of audit and
risk

Manique Carayol Trust Board

(RCHIP)**

David Hawkins Trust Board

Finance and Performance
(RCHIP)y**

Part Il risk session of audit and
risk

Stephen Hall Trust Board

Finance and Performance
Workforce and Education

(RCHIP)**
Alison Heeralall, Trust Board

Workforce and Education
Donna Lamb Trust Board

Quality Governance
Workforce and Education

(RCHIP)**
Dr John Omany Trust Board

Quality Governance
Anne Stratton Trust Board

Charitable Funds
Quality Governance
** RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the RGPA to oversee progress with delivery of the Qutcome-
Based Commissioning contract. RCHIiP is a committee of both the trust's and RGPA’s Boards.

The Register of Interest of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is published on the trust's
website on the ‘Our Board’ tab https://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-and-
leadership/board-meetings

/?M CJV\?LL

Chief Executive Date: 24 June 2020
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b. Annual governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of the NHS trust's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the
public funds and departmental assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS trust is administered
prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. | also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies and
strategic objectives of Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Hounslow
and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Risk Management

In 2019 as a trust on our Journey to Outstanding, we decided to take a fresh look at risk management to
ensure that risk was further embedded into all decision making. To enable us to deliver the ambition set
out in the trust strategy and the NHS Plan we decided it was timely to produce a risk management
strategy to support our commitment to provide high quality services. We recognised that successful risk
management must be forward thinking; the responsibility of all; comprehensive and coordinated; and that
proactive and continuous identification and management of risk is essential to the delivery of high value
healthcare.

The strategy sets out clear goals, achievements and timescales for implementation. This enables staff to
work towards the same aims empowering innovation whilst ensuring patient quality and care are at the
centre of delivery. Within the strategy we created a vision for risk management. Risk management will be
everybody's business — integral to professional and operational practice at every level and across
organisational/professional boundaries. We will continually strive to test the boundaries of practice, whilst
ensuring that we operate within legal and regulatory frameworks to reduce the exposure to risk to ensure
that patients receive outstanding care.

Risk governance

The trust board is accountable to NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/) for the trust's performance. The
main governance committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director and report directly to the board.
Each committee is informed and supported by a variety of groups and local meetings.

Risk and control framework

The trust has a robust approach to risk management with:

« the board holding an annual risk seminar to review risk management systems and processes and to
agree the organisational risk appetite statement
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the Audit and Risk Committee assuming delegated authority from the board for oversight and
assurance on the management of strategic risks to the delivery of the trust's objectives. The Audit
and Risk Committee is supported in its oversight of strategic risks by the Finance and Performance,
Executive, Quality Governance and Workforce and Education Committees which lead on specific
strategic risks

the Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk management systems and
delegates responsibility for the management of specific areas of risk to named Directors

all staff are provided with risk management training as part of their induction to the trust
face-to-face training for those staff regularly involved in risk management being provided as
appropriate

an open culture to empower staff to report and resolve incidents and risks through the Datix
recording system and to share learning with teams

Managing workforce risks

HRCH has a five-year workforce strategy in place (2020-2024), which was co-developed with clinical
and corporate staff and agreed by the board

the strategy and its associated action plans and workforce risks are monitored and assured through
the board’s Workforce and Education Committee (WEC), which is a sub-committee of the board.
The WEC receives the workforce performance report that uses local and national metrics and
triangulates with benchmark data and quality and financial data

the workforce planning methodology entails firstly understanding the trust strategy and how to best
serve our vision that people will live healthier lives through high-quality, effective and co-ordinated
care. Then follows a review of where the trust is and what gaps in skills and training are required to
deliver that vision (such as digital and mobile technology and multi-agency transformation and
engagement skills), followed by planning of the workforce required to meet the future strategy and
activity assumptions in the most efficient way. The planning phase includes consideration of the
needs of the local population in terms of workforce diversity, workforce supply (greater use of
apprenticeships, ‘retire and return’ options and the development of new roles) and service
transformation in line with the NHS Long Term Plan (greater use of on-line consultations etc)

Managing quality risk

The clinical governance agenda is led by the Director of Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals and
the Medical Director. Monitoring arrangements are delivered through a structure of committees,
supporting clear responsibilities and accountabilities from board to front line delivery. The Quality
Governance Committee (QGC) is a committee of the board, which affords scrutiny and monitoring of
the quality agenda.

the Quality and Safety Committee (QSC) reports to the QGC. The Director of Nursing and Non-
Medical Professionals chairs this committee; membership of the QSC's committees and working
groups ensures senior leadership as well as frontline engagement with the governance agenda
the trust's clinical governance structure ensures there are robust systems in place for key
governance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline services to the board and gives
assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus on service improvement and ensures high
standards of delivery are maintained

the board and the relevant committees use a performance scorecard which has been developed to
include a suite of quality indicators at trust and service level aligned to each of the Care Quality
Commission’s five domains of quality. Services are expected to provide exception reports for any
indicators which are not performing as agreed and managers are held to account against action
plans to ensure trajectories are maintained. This approach enables centralised reporting of
performance and quality data and improved triangulation of information
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» the trust's quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in the Journey to Outstanding (J20)
programme. The J20 programme is a structured quality improvement plan with quality improvement
plans in all services to monitor and demonstrate compliance with the CQC's fundamental standards
and against each of the CQC's domains and Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE)

Risk management process

The trust defines risk management as a process to identify factors which may possibly prevent us
from providing an excellent, safe, efficient and effective place of work to deliver patient care and for
staff to work. Risk management includes the process of identifying hazards, risk assessment,
formulating a response, risk reporting and risk review. Risk management is as much about exploiting
new business opportunities and innovation as mitigating risk.

Risk management process

«Using Trust aobjectives, incidents, complaints, claims, patient feedback, safety inspections etc
sldentify the risk; what is or could cause harm and stop you achieving your objectives

*How significant is the risk?
»Who and what are at risk, estimate of consequence, assess the risk scoring, document your assessment

| sHow is risk managed?
*Describe controls, document actions, score risk, add to risk register, escalate, monitor and assure controls

“:KEV outputs of risk register are reported to relevant committee/groups depending on score

s All risk owners continually monitor and review risks

Trust Risk Registers (TRR) (inc Board Assurance Framework (BAF))

Comprises the local risk registers, the trust risk register as well as the board assurance framework
(BAF), which seek to present an overview of the main risks facing the organisation. The local risk
registers are reviewed, updated and monitored regularly by the relevant directorate and, if necessary, a
risk can be escalated onto the trust risk register, which is monitored each quarter by the Quality and
Safety and Quality Governance Committees.

The BAF provides the trust with a simple but comprehensive method for effective and focused
management of the principal strategic risks to the delivery of the trust's business. 1t identifies the controls
and assurances in place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls and assurances,
and actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The system of internal control is designed
to manage risks to a reasonable level and not to eliminate all risk.

The BAF is monitored by each Executive Director who assesses the status of their risk entry by having

oversight of the Trust Risk Register. The BAF is monitored each month by the Executive Committee and
quarterly by the Audit and Risk Committee on behalf of the trust board.

Annual Report 2019-20 page 33 of 62



An annual advisory review on the BAF and Risk Management was carried out by RSM Risk Assurance
Services LLP (who also provide our internal audit advice) and concluded the trust controls are robust
and effectively designed. RSM confirmed the BAF is discussed at relevant committee meetings to
ensure that risks included are up to date with regards to controls and assurances; and any progress
against actions is als¢ included.

Incident reporting

The trust follows the National Patient Safety Agency viewpoint “Trusts that report incidents regularly
suggest a stronger organisational culfure of safety. They take all incidents seriously and link reporting
with learning.” All services and staff are trained to use the Datix system which facilitates linking of
information across incident reporting, complaints and risk management.

A monthly report of incidents and serious incidents is reported to the Quality and Safety Committee
where it is discussed and analysed for themes and trends and assurance is sought that risk is being
managed.

The trust is a learning organisation and uses all opportunities to learn from when things go wrong and to
share that learning. It has embraced a ‘being open’ approach and ‘duty of candour'. Organisational and
service level learning is identified through incidents, audit and patient feedback and it reports lessons
learned and monitors that any required changes in practice are implemented.

The trust promotes a culture of ‘shared learning' that is embedded throughout the services and has a
number of processes to enable this which includes a monthly ‘Learn and Share’ newsletter and reflective
learning panels to ensure that staff are involved in the discussion and agreement of actions. This
promotes clinical ownership, mitigates the risk of a Serious Incident reoccurring and promotes shared
learning.

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The board of directors leads on integrated governance and delegates key duties and functions to its
sub-committees. In addition, the board reserves certain decision-making powers including decisions on
strategy and budgets. The diagram below gives an overview of the trust's integrated governance
structure

Corporate governance framework

There are five key sub-committees with responsibility for receiving information on risk management
within the structure that provide assurance to the board of directors. The Executive Committee reports
directly to the board although not a board sub-committee.

There are a range of mechanisms available to these commiittees to gain assurance that systems are

robust and effective. These include utilising internal and external audit, peer review, management
reporting and clinical audit.
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Committee structures
Each Committee Chair works within a framework which ensures a consistent approach across all
committees, including terms of reference, upward reporting and review of effectiveness.

The Board of Directors
Membership of the board of directors is currently made up of the trust chairman, five
independent, Non-Executive Directors, and eight Executive Directors of which six are
voting members of the board, two with a share of one vote. The key roles and
responsibilities of the board are as follows:
= o set and oversee the strategic direction of the trust
« review and appraisal of financial and operational performance
= to review areas of assurance and concerns as detailed in the chair's assurance reports from its
board committees
* {o discharge its duties of regulation and control and meet statutory obligations
* to ensure the trust continues to deliver high quality patient care, with quality and safety as its
primary focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reparis and also a chair's report
from the key board committee which deals with patient quality and safety — the Quality Governance
Committee
» to receive reports from the Audit and Risk Committee, which include the BAF and progress against
the delivery of strategic objectives, the annual internal auditor's report and external auditor’'s report
and to take decisions, as appropriate
« to agree the trust’s annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement
= to approve the annual report and annual accounts
+ to certify the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions is reviewed annually and the self-
declaration is uploaded onto the website.
On the 'self-certification’ tab https:/iwww.hrch.nhs. uk/about-usitrust-board-and-leadership/board-

meetings
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The board of directors meets in public bi-monthly and a breakdown of attendance for the board's
2019/20 part | meetings is shown below:

Job Title and Name Attendance
Chairman, Stephen Swords (to 31 Dec 2019) 40f4
Board Advisor (non-voting), Non-Executive Director (from 1/10/19), Ginny 6of8
Colwell

Non-Executive Director, Phil Hall 50f6
Non-Executive Director, Joanne Hay 3of6
Non-Executive Director, Ajay Mehta (until October 2019) 20f3
Non-Executive Director, Judith Rutherford 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Bindesh Shah 50f6
Chief Executive, Patricia Wright 6 ofb
Director of Clinical Services, Stephen Hall (shared vote) 5of6
Director of Clinical Services, Anne Stratton (shared vote) 6 of 6
Director of Finance and Corporate Services, David Hawkins 6of6
Director and Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Donna Lamb 50f6
Director of Strategy and Transformation, Monique Carayol (non-voting) 50f6
Director of Workforce, Alison Heeralall (non-voting) 50f6
Medical Director, John Omany Gofg

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is a formal committee of the board and is accountable to the board for
reviewing the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk
management and internal control, across the trust's aclivities both clinical and non-clinical, that
supports the achievement of the trust's objectives. The commitiee meets at least five meetings per year

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) is a formal committee of the board which focuses on
ensuring robust structures and processes are in place for governing the quality and clinical services
and ensuring services are safe. The committee’s role is to provide assurance on clinical quality,
including clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience.

It supports the board with an integrated approach to risk, control and governance, monitoring
performance against quarterly quality indicators, the quality accounts and all aspects of the three
domains of quality namely - patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. The committee
meets at least six times per year

Finance and Performance Committee

The Finance and Performance Committee reviews financial and non-financial performance across the
trust, reporting to the board. It also has lead oversight for risks to the delivery of trust's sustainability
strategic priority, along with delivery of the trust's strategies for estates and information management
and technology. The committee meets at least four times per year.

Workforce and Education Committee

The Workforce and Education Committee is responsible for providing assurance that there are
processes and plans in place to agree and achieve the workforce objectives. The committee oversees
the trust's staff engagement and recruitment and retention strategic priorities that enables the trust to
compete successfully for recruits in areas where there is a shortage of supply. It reviews performance
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against the delivery of key workforce plans which also cover staff engagement actions taken following
the outcome of the annual NHS staff survey. The committee holds four meetings each year.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has delegated responsibility to oversee the effective operational

management of the trust. The commitiee meets monthly to review:

= the development and implementation of business plans, policies, procedures and budgets

= operating and financial performance

» the prioritisation and allocation of investment and resources within limits set down by standing
financial instructions

» the effective mitigation of risks to the delivery of the trust's strategic priorities

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the pay and contractual
arrangements for Executive Directors and for monitoring and evaluating their performance and
ensuring appropriate succession plans are in place for board members. It is also responsible for
ensuring that Directors meet the Fit and Proper Person Test as required by the Health and Social Care
Act 2008, (Regulated Activities), Regulations 2014.

Charitable Funds' Committee

The Charitable Funds Committee has been established by the board to make and monitor
arrangements for the control and management of the trust's charitable fund. Key duties of the
Committee are to apply the charitable funds in accordance with the charity’s governing documents. The
committee ensures that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to support the objects of the
charity and ensures that donated funds and assets are properly spent, managed, invested and
accounted for in line with guidance from the Charity Commission and in compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership Committee (RCHiP)

RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the Richmond GP Alliance (RGPA) to oversee progress with
delivery of the Qutcome-Based Commissioning contract. RCHIP is a committee of both the trust's and
RGPA's boards.

Annual committee effectiveness reviews

In line with good governance practice and, as an integral part of being a well-led organisation, each
board committee annually reviews its performance against its specific terms of reference and
objectives. Each committee also comments on its oversight of performance against the delivery of the
key work plans for the year. This information is then presented to the trust board with any revisions to
the terms of reference and the forthcoming year's work pilan. The trust board also considers the whole
of its committee structure annually to ensure that it is delivering its requirements.

Equality analysis

Equality analyses (formerly known as equality impact assessments) are integrated into core business
as a requirement for all trust decisions contained in its strategies, policies, procedures and protocols.
The trust has systems in place to ensure that it collects, analyses and acts on information relating to
the legislation on equality and diversity of its workforce and the population it serves. Control measures
are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under quality, diversity and human rights
legislation are complied with. Equality and diversity is overseen by the trust Equality, Diversity and
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Inclusion committee chaired by the Director of Workforce with a NED and patient executive lead.
Assurance is reported via the trust executive commitiee.

Care Quality Commission registration
The trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in
place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with.
This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer's contributions and payments into the
Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are
accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Carbon reduction

The trust has undertaken risk assessments, and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, based on UK Climate
Projections 2018 (UKCP18) to ensure that obligations under the Climate Change Act and the
Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The trust has in place a range of processes which help to ensure that resources are used

economically, efficiently and effectively. These include:

« monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the board of directors and the
Finance and Performance Committee of the board

* monthly Executive Performance review meetings where directorates are held to account for financial
and non-financial performance

+ the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national reference costs

= continuous benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators (KPls) against community trusts
and other providers

= standing financial instructions, standing orders and treasury management policy

» a budget holder's manual which sets ocut managers’ responsibilities in relation to managing budgets

= policies covering the declaration of conflicts of interest, anti-fraud and anti-bribery measures, and
also standards of business conduct

= reports by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP as part of the annual internal audit work plan on
control mechanisms which may need reviewing

= the Head of Internal Audit's draft and final opinions being presented to the Audit and Risk
Committee

» external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP who also provide an independent view of the trust’s
effective and efficient use of resources, particularly against value for money considerations

= good performance under NHS Improvement's Single Oversight Framework for NHS providers

Information governance

Information governance supports our statutory duty to safeguard patients’ information and keep it
confidential but available. It assures us and patients that personal information is dealt with legally,
securely, efficiently and effectively.

NHS Digital's annual Data Security and Protection toolkit (DSPT) audit helps us assess ourselves
against current data protection legislation and related regulations, giving either a pass or fail mark.
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The trust submitted a fully compliant assessment in March 2020, This was achieved through a variety
of measures and actions, including:
* Continued review of personal data to ensure that the trust operates in line with the General Data
Protection Regulations {GDPR) and follows a ‘data protection by design' approach
* Review of access to information processes, to ensure that all requests are answered within the
legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large fines from the ICO
» Ongoing review and revision of the trust privacy notice
+ Completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects, services, systems
and applications which involve the use of personal data
» Ongaoing review of data flow in and out of the organisation, to ensure accountability
» Self-referring data incidents to the ICO for full transparency ensuring no further action was taken
» An audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital toolkit by our
external auditors
« Board level cyber security training with GCHQ
» A business continuity tabletop exercise
» Continuing review of policies and staff guidance
» Helping colleagues to complete information governance and security e-learning training
e Aftending team meetings so that data protection and security is a key element of all work, and staff
take responsibility for data in their team

By submitting a fully compliant DSPT we are working towards Cyber Essentials Plus accreditation.

The trust reports information governance “serious incidents” onto the national serious incident reporting
system, STEIS, and to the Information Commissioners’ Office (ICQ).

In 2019-20, one |G incident was reported as an S and so was reported to the ICO. No further action
was taken. A further incident was a self-referral to the ICO and no further action was taken

Annual Quality Account

In line with the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010
(as amended) the trust prepares an annual Quality Account which is signed off by the trust board prior
fo it being shared with commissioners, Healthwatch and the local authority scrutiny committees.

The Quality Account is a summary of performance in the last year in relation to quality priorities and
national requirements. The Account is not required to be audited however an internal process of
scrutinising the data to ensure it is consistent with the trust performance scorecard is used. The
template used for the quality account meets statutory requirements and the trust reviews new guidance
annually - for instance the inclusion of mortality data in the 2017-18 quality account.

Data quality

General data guality is audited annually and the trust has undertaken actions to improve the quality of
its electronic patient record through better use of templates and the automation of data where
appropriate. The trust assures the quality and accuracy of elective waiting time data through both its
Business Intelligence reporting and the Patient Tracking List (PTL) that is distributed to, and discussed
by, operational leads. Waiting times are individually monitored by both service lines and urgency.
Alongside external data quality audits, data capture is continually reviewed by the applications team
and any training requirements are subsequently assessed with resource then appropriately allocated.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the
internal auditors, clinical audit and the Executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS trust who
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. | have
drawn on the information provided in this annual report and other performance information available to
me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter
and other reports. | have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the board, the Audit and Risk Committee and Quality
Governance Committee and plans to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system are in place.

The board ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear accountability
arrangements.

An annual “Head of Internal Audit Opinion" based on the work and audit assessments undertaken
during the year for 2019-20 was issued and provided assurance that the organisation has an adequate
and effective framework for risk management, governance and internal control.

Factors which helped to inform the Head of Internal Audit's Opinion included undertaking specifically
requested management reviews with the aim of strengthening current practices. The Data Quality —
Clinical Supervision and Mobile Working Arrangements audits have both shown only partial assurance
and internal audit have provided recommendations to address and strengthen processes in line with
current requirements. The Head of Internal Audit Opinion also identified further enhancements to Data
Quality — Clinical Supervision and Mobile working Arrangements to ensure that they remain adequate
and effective.

[ am confident that the internal audit reports undertaken were a true reflection of HRCH's position and
that the updated action plans scrutinised at the Quality Governance Committee and Audit and Risk

Committee reflect clear and concise progress in all areas

Conclusion
I confirm that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

/25m &),\?AL

Chief Executive Date: 24 June 2020
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2.2 Financial report from the Director of Finance

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each
financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the treasury, directs that these accounts
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the trust and of the income and expenditure,
recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are
required to:
= apply on a consistent basis, accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the
approval of the Treasury

= make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to

assess the NHS trust's performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the trust

2

/a s CJV\?RL

e

24 June 2020 Date Finance Director

24 June 2020....Date Chief Executive

Financial Balance

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust planned for a control total of £1,659k {which
included a £1,326k contribution from the Provider Sustainability Fund (PSF)) and delivered a £1,664k
surplus. This was achieved through sound financial planning and control by budget managers despite
being faced with a number of in-year financial pressures.
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Total Income for 2019-20 was £77.7m with 77% of this coming from Clinical Commissioning Groups.
Hounslow and Richmond CCGs were the trust's two main commissioners. Included in this income is
£2m of notional income representing the value of additional pension contributions paid centrally by NHS
England.

| Where our income comes from

B NHS Trusts

29 4% 1% 9q B NHS England

B\

m Clinical Commissioning
Groups

© Foundation Trusts

H Local Authorities

B PSF Funding

= All Other

7%

Total Expenditure for 2019-20 was £76.0m and 71% of this was spent on staff salaries and wages.
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Where we spent our money

W Salaries & Wages m Services from other NHS Bodies
| M Establishment  Supplies & Services - Clinical
! M Depreciation m Dividends

W Premises o All Other

Statement of Financial Position

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust ended the year in a strong financial position.
Total assets employed increased by £2.9m to £46.3m due to new investment of £1.8m, mainly into
buildings, and IT. There was a revaluation of our land and buildings which increased their values by £1.3m.
Trust creditors and accruals have increased by £2.7m and debtors have also increased by £1.8m. The trust
continues to have no borrowing.

Cash-flow

Cash increased by £2.6m in the year due to the level of surplus delivered and an increase in creditors. The
cash balance may contribute positively towards future plans including spending on capital projects to
improve the patient experience and enhance our technology and systems.

Better Payment Practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the trust to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or
within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust recognises the need in the current economic
climate to pay suppliers promptly and has continued to maintain good performance against this code,
consistently achieving above the target of 95% throughout most of the year. However, we missed the target
marginally in March due to the implementation of new ledger systems which delayed some payments to
suppliers.
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2018-20 2018-19

Number Number
Non-NHS Creditors
Total bills paid in the year 16,157 18,336
Total bills paid within target 15,034 17,434
Percentage of bifls paid within target 93.0% 95.1%
NHS Creditors
Total bills paid in the year 884 699
Total bills paid within target 842 690
Percentage of bills paid within target 95,2% 98.7%
Overall
Total bills paid in the year 17,041 19035
Total bills paid within target 15,876 18124
Percentage of bills paid within target 93.2% 95.2%

The trust has signed up to the Prompt Payments Code.

Auditors
The trust's external auditors for 2019-20 were KPMG. The cost of external audit for work undertaken in
2019-20 was £37,100 excluding VAT. (2018-19 £37,600 excluding VAT).

As far as the directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the NHS body’s auditors
are unaware and that the directors have taken all the required steps as directors in order to ensure they
are aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
infarmation,

Looking forward

While the NHS is in a period of transition, HRCH continues to plan on a longer-term basis for both
revenue and capital spends, which in turn will allow it to provide high quality services for the local
population.

2.4 Remuneration and staff report

Remuneration report

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust (HRCH) Nominations and Remuneration
Committee is responsible for determining the pay and contractual arrangements for its most senior
managers and for monitoring and evaluating their performance. Information relating to Executive and
Non-Executive directors is therefore included in this report.
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The committee comprises the Chairman and all Non-Executive Directors of the board. The Nominations
and Remuneration Committee reviews the salaries of its most senior managers annually. Cost of living
awards are in accordance with the guidance issued by NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/).

Standardised terms and conditions of service apply to the most senior managers, who are employed on
contracts of employment. Performance of the most senior managers is assessed formally through an
individual performance and development review process. Performance-related payments were made in
the remuneration packages in 2019-20.

Details of directors’ remuneration and pension entitlements are covered in the following tables. This has
been subject to audit.

Information from the Register of Interests recorded by board directors during the year can be found
within this report.

Starting salaries for Executive Directors are determined by the committee with reference to guidance
from NHSE/, independently obtained NHS salary survey information, internal relativities, and equal
pay provisions and other labour market factors, where relevant.

Pay progression is determined by the committee for:
+ annual inflation considerations in line with nationally published indices (RPI/CPI), Department of
Health/NHSE/I guidance and other nationally determined NHS pay settlements

- specific review of the individual salaries in line with independently obtained NHS salary survey
information, other labour and market factors where relevant, e.g. for cross sector functional
disciplines, internal relativities and equal pay provisions. Such review is only likely where an
individual director’s portfolio of work or market factors change substantially.

Other senior managers are paid in accordance with the national NHS Agenda for Change pay
system.

The remuneration of the chairman and the Non-Executive directors is set by NHSE/I.

Contracts

Contracts for directors are normally substantive (permanent) contracts subject to termination by
written notice, by either party, except in cases of gross misconduct, when summary dismissal would
be imposed. On occasion, as required by the needs of the organisation, appointments may be of a
temporary or ‘acting’ nature in which case a lesser notice period may be agreed.

Termination liabilities for Executive Directors
There are no provisions for compensation for early termination for any Executive Directors, as
detailed in the table below.

Other termination liabilities for all Executive Directors are the entitlements under the relevant NHS
terms and conditions and the NHS Pension scheme. Statutory entitlement also applies in the event of
unfair dismissal. The balance of annual leave earned but untaken would be due to be paid on
termination.
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Name Post Title Date of Unexpired Notice Provision for Other
Contract Term Period Compensation Termination
for Early Liability
Termination
Patricia Wright | Chief Executive 1 November Substantive | 3 months None See text
20181 above
David Director of Finance 1 April 20112 Substantive | 3 months None As above
Hawkins and Corporate
Services
Donna Lamb Director of Nursing 1 February Substantive | 3 months None As above
and Non-Medical 2018°
Professionals
John Omany | Medical Director 1 May 2018 Substantive | 3 months None As above
Alison Director of Workforce | 25 November | Substantive | 3 months None As above
Heeralall 20154
Monique Director of 1 October Substantive | 3 months None As above
Carayol Transformation 2016°
Anne Stratton | Director of Clinical 1 October Substantive | 3 months None As above
Services 2016
Stephen Hall Director of Clinical 3 January Substantive | 3 months None As ahove
Services 2017

" interim fixed term CEO from October 2015 and fixed term from 1 May 2016 to 31 October 2016

INew VSM contract incorporating Corporate Services from 1 January 2016

¥ Acting Director of Nursing from 1 April 2017 o 31 January 2018

*New VSM contract incorporating Communications from 1 October 2016, substantive from 1 October 2018
*Substantive from 1 Oclober 2018
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As Non-Executive Directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in
respect of pensions for them. Pension details have only been disclosed for those Directors in post
during 2019-20.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme.

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer
the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just
their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.

The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.

Remuneration ratios
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-
paid Director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust in the financial year 2018/20 was £143,907 (2018/19 - £142,032). This was
4.59 times (2018/19 — 4.46 times) the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce of
£31,365 (2018/19 - £31,864). In 2019/20, Nil (2018/19 Nil), employees received remuneration in
excess of the highest paid director. Remuneration ranged from £13,816 to £128,752 (2018/19
£17,652 to £118,950)

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits in kind as

well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.
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Staff Costs
The following table sets out the costs of staff employed either permanently, on the bank or via agency
during 2019-20.

SN IR NI
Permanent l

Social security costs 3532 212 3,744 3 404
Apprenticeship levy 180 _ 180 171

Employer's contributions to NHS
S 6,759 204 6,963 4,632

Pension cost - other

Other post-employment benefits

Other employment benefits

Termination benefits

Temporary staff

- 4,069 4,060 3,920
Total gross staff costs 46,318 6,752 53,070 49,156
Recoveries in respect of seconded
staff
Total staff costs 46,318 6,752 53,070 49,156
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Average number of employees (WTE basis)

"'ll'.‘.,_."r 20 ] =

1otal

‘Medicaland dental ™ e 2] 1] 12
Ambulance staff 2 0l 2 1
Administration and estates 115 18 133 132
Healthcare assistants and other support
staff 311 24 335 344
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 272 40 312 301
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting
learners 6 - 6 6
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 249 25 274 283
Healthcare science staff 14 1 15 12
Social care staff - - = -
Other - - - 2
Total average numbers 978 110 1,088 1,093
Of which:

Number of employees (WTE) engaged on
capital projects 2 - 2 1
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Exit packages

Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2019-20

Exit package cost band (mcludlng
any special payment element)

| Total number
of exit

<£10,000

£10,001 - £25,000

£25,001 - 50,000

£50,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £150,000

£150,001 - £200,000

>£200,000

Total number of exit packages by

type

Total resource cost (£)

Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2018-19

special payment element)

Exlt package cost  band (mcludlngany

_.L__._.__.

L-___ — o

<£10,000

£10,001 - £25,000

£25,001 - 50,000

£50,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £150,000

£150,001 - £200,000

>£200,000

Total number of exit packages by type

Total resource cost (£)

£0

£0 £0
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Exit packages: other (non-compulsory) departure payments

agreement

Numbe] £000

Iuntary redundancies
including early retirement
contractual costs

Mutually agreed resignations - 5 - N
{(MARS) contractual costs

Early retirements in the - - - -
efficiency of the service
contractual costs

Contractual payments in lieu of - - - -
notice

Exit payments following - = E -
Employment Tribunals or court
orders

Non-contractual payments - = - -
requiring HMT approval

Total - - = =

Of which: - - - S

Non-contractual payments - - - -
requiring HMT approval made
to individuals where the
payment value was more than
12 months’ of their annual
salary
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For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2020 for more than £245 per day and that

last longer than six months:

' ' Number

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 0

Of which, the number that have existed:

for less than one year at the time of reporting 0

for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0

for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0

for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0

for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0 |

The trust can confirm that all existing off-payroll engagements have at some point been subject to a
risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the right
amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.

For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020, for more

than £245 per day and that last longer than six months:

Of which...
Number

No. of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 0
duration, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2019

Of which:

No. assessed as caught by IR35 0
No. assessed as not caught by IR35 0
No. engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) and 0
are on the departmental payroll

No. of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance 0
purposes during the year.

No. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status 0
following the consistency review
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Off-payroll board member/senior official engagements

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

No. of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, 0
senior officials with significant financial responsibility, during the
financial year. (1)

No. of individuals that have been deemed “board members, 17
and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility”,
during the financial year. This figure should include both off-
payroll and on-payroll engagements
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SECTION 3 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 Accountability Statements

STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE ACCOUNTABLE
OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust
Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer
of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust
Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

+ there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and
assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

e value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

» the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;

» effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

» annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financia! year and the
income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust’s auditors are
unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to make myself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

/2@& a),\?cxa

Chief Executive Date: 24 June 2020
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3.2 FINANCIAL accounts

The summary financial statements are shown below a full copy of the accounts can be obtained from the

website: www.hrch.nhs.uk

The auditor’s issued an unqualified opinion on the full accounts and stated that the strategic and

Director's reports were consistent with the full accounts and annual report.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust

Summary Financial Statements 2019-20

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended 31 March 2020

2019-20
£ 000

Employee benefits (53,070)
Other costs (22,400)
Revenue from patient care activities 74,341
Other Operating revenue 3,325
Operating surplus/{deficit) 2,196
Investment revenue 169
Surplus/{deficit) for the financial year 2,355
Public dividend capital dividends payable (691)
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year 1,664
Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation of Assets 1,273
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,937

2018-19

£ 000

(49,156)
(19,850}
67,960
5,893
4,847

102
4,949

(691)
4,258

(560)

3,698
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2020

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Other Liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total Assets Employed
FINANCED BY

Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve

Total Taxpayers' Equity
/ ok RN C_Ju\?(’\-/’“

Chief Executive Date: 24 June 2020

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2020

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Balance at 1 April 2018

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

Revaluation of Assets

Balance at 31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19
£ 000 £000
28,264 27,006
0 0
28,264 27,006
8,355 6,501
24,460 21,872
32,815 28,373
61,079 55,379
(13,991} (11,275)
0 (32)
(53) (25)
47,035 44,047
(704) (700)
46,331 43,347
34,358 32,604
11,973 10,653
46,331 43,347

Retained earnings

£000

43,347
1,664
1,320

46,331
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating Surplus/Deficit

Depreciation and Amortisation

Income recognised in respect of capital donations
Impairments and Reversals

PDC Dividend Paid

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Provisions Utilised

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets
(Payments} for Property, Plant and Equipment

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

NET CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW) BEFORE FINANCING

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities

NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at beginning of the year

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign Currencies

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end

2019-20
£ 000

2,196
1,898
0

0
(757)
(1,854)
2,572
0

(3}
4,053

159

0
(1,624)
(1,465)

2,588

2,588
21,872

24,460

2018-1%
£ 000

4,847
2,080
(534)

(691)
(46)
2,644
19

8,319

102
534
(3,026)
(2,389)

5,930

5,930
15,942

21,872
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3.3 Glossary of financial terms

Accruals

Assets

Break-even (duty)

Capital

Capital charges

Capital resource
limit (CRL)

Cost improvement
programme

Current assets

Depreciation

An accounting concept. In addition to payments and receipts of cash (and
similar), adjustment is made for outstanding payments, debis to be
collected, and stock (items bought, paid for but not yet used). This means
that the accounts show all the income and expenditure that relates to the
financial year.

An item that has a value in the future. For example, a debtor (someone
who owes money) is an asset, as they will in future pay. A building is an
asset, because it houses activity that will provide a future income stream.
A financial target. Although the exact definition of the target is relatively
complex, in its simplest form the break-even duty requires the NHS
organisation to match income and expenditure, i.e. make neither a profit
nor a loss.

In most businesses, capital refers either to shareholder investment funds,
or buildings, land and equipment owned by a business that has the
potential to earn income in the future. The NHS uses this second
definition but adds a further condition — that the cost of the
building/equipment must exceed £5,000. Capital is thus an asset (or
group of functionally interdependent assets), with a useful life expectancy
of greater than one year, whose cost exceeds £5,000.

Capital charges are a device for ensuring that the cost associated with
owning capital is recognised in the accounts. A charge is made to the
income and expenditure account on all capital assets except donated
assets and those with a zero net book value. The capital charge
comprises depreciation, and a return similar to debt interest. This rate of
return is set by the Treasury and is currently 3.5%.

An expenditure limit determined by the Department of Health for each
NHS organisation limiting the amount that may be expended on capital
purchases, as assessed on an accruals basis (i.e. after adjusting for
debtors and creditors).

The identification of schemes to reduce expenditurefincrease efficiency.

Debtors, stocks, cash or similar — i.e. assets that are, or can be
converted into, cash within the next twelve months.

The process of charging the cost of an asset over its useful life as
opposed to recording its cost as a single entry in the income and
expenditure records. Depreciation is an accounting charge (i.e. it does
not involve any cash outlay). Accumulated depreciation is the extent to
which depreciation has been charged in successive years’ income and
expenditure accounts since the acquisition of the asset.



Financial
reporting
standard (FRS)

Fixed assets

General medical
services

Governance

Healthcare
resource group
{HRG)

Indexation

Net book value

Overheads

Payment by
results

QIPP

Issued by the Accounting Standards Board, financial reporting standards
govern the accounting treatment and accounting policies adopted by
organisations. Generally these standards apply to NHS organisations.

Land, buildings or equipment that are expected to generate income for a
period exceeding one year.

Medical services provided by general practitioners (as opposed to dental,
ophthalmic and pharmaceutical services provided by other clinical
professions).

Governance (or corporate governance) is the system by which
organisations are directed and controlled. |t is concerned with how an
organisation is run — how it structures itself and how it is led. Governance
should underpin all that an organisation does. In the NHS this means it
must encompass clinical, financial and organisational aspects.

HRGs are the ‘currency’ used to collate the costs of
procedures/diagnoses into common groupings to which tariffs can be
applied. HRGs place these procedures and/or diagnoses into bands,
which are ‘resource homogenous’, that is, clinically similar and
consuming similar levels of resources.

A process of adjusting the value, normally of fixed assets, to account for
inflation.

The value of items (assets) as recorded in the balance sheet of an
organisation. The net book value takes into consideration the
replacement cost of an asset and the accumulated depreciation (i.e. the
extent to which that asset has been ‘consumed’ by its use in productive
processes).

Overhead costs are those costs that contribute to the general running of
the organisation but cannot be directly related to an activity or service.
For example, the total heating costs of a hospital may be apportioned to
individual departments using floor area or cubic capacity.

A financial framework in which providers are paid according to the level
of activity undertaken. Payment is based on a national tariff system.

Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention: National Department of
Health sirategy involving all NHS staff, patients, clinicians and the
voluntary sector. It aims to improve the quality and delivery of NHS care
while reducing costs to make £20bn efficiency savings by 2014-15.
These savings will be reinvested to support the front line.
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Reference costs

Revenue

Tangible asset

Variance

Working capital

NHS organisations are required to submit a schedule of costs of
healthcare resource groups to allow direct comparison of the relative
costs of different providers. The results are published each year in the
National Schedule of Reference Costs.

On-going or recurring costs or funding for the provision of services.
A sub-classification of fixed assets, to exclude invisible items such as

goodwill and brand values. Tangible fixed assets include land, buildings,
equipment, and fixtures and fittings.

The difference between budgeted and actual income and/or expenditure.

Variances are an accounting tool used to analyse the cause of
over/under spends with a view to proposing rectifying action.

Working capital is the money and assets that an organisation can call
upon to finance its day-to-day operations (it is the difference between
current assets and liabilities and is reported in the balance sheet as net
current assets (liabilities). |If working capital dips too low, organisations
risk running out of cash and may need a working capital loan to smooth
out the troughs.
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